
City of Berwyn 
City Council Meeting 

November 27,2007 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

NOVEMBER 27,2007 

DEAR ATTENDEE ... THE MA YOR AND CITY COUNCIL WELCOME YOU. PLEASE KEEP IN MIND THAT THIS IS A 
MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS AS OPPOSED TO A PUBLIC HEARING WHERE ATTENDEES ARE 
ENCOURAGED TO PARTICIPATE UNLESS INVITED BY THE MAYOR TO SPEAK, YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO 
INTERRUPT IF YOU ARE RECOGNIZED BY THE MAYOR, PLEASE PREFACE YOUR REMARKS BY STATING YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD THANK YOU. 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR 
MAYOR 

ROLLCALL 
AGENDA 

(A) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - MOMENT OF SILENCE 
(B) OPEN FORUM - (TOPIC MUST NOT BE ON THE AGENDA) 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

(C) PRESENTATION OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS MINUTES FOR APPROVAL 

L MIN. REG. MTG.-III13/07-COW 11/13/07 

(D) BID OPENING - TABULATIONS 

(E) BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORP.-BERWYN TOWNSHIP/HEALTH DISTRICT 
I. DEFER-BDC 2008 TIF BUDGET-REQ TO DEFER FOR ADDITIONAL 2 WKS 
2 BDC-LETTER OF RECOMMENDA TION:HOMESCAPE BATH & KITCHEN DESIGN-

6823 ROOSEVELT RD 

(F) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
I. OFFICIAL VETO OF ORD. #07-59-CITY PROVIDE LEGAL COUNCIL & 

INDEMNIFICATION FOR OFFICIALS 
2. EXEMPT TRANSFER STAMP FEES 
3. CHANGE OF SCHEDULED DECEMBER CITY COUNCIL MTG 
4. APPOINTMENTS TO 911 BOARD 
5. HOLIDA Y SCHEDULE 
6.. BIDDING FOR NEW FIREHOUSE 

(G) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CITY CLERK 
I. RULES OF COUNCIL 21O.10-RULE 28 
2 LEGAL REVIEW OF CODIFIED ORDINANCES 

(H) COMMUNICATIONS FROM ( ZONING) BOARD OF APPEALS 

(1) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM ALDERMEN, COMMITTEES OTHER BOARDS 
AND COMMISSIONS 
I. DEFER-ERICKSON-NATIONAL HEALTH CARE CRISIS 
2. DEFER-CHAPMAN-3500 EUCLID-PORCH RAILINGS 
3. CHAPMAN-LIBRARY PERSONNEL ISSUE 

(I) STAFF REPORTS 
I. DEFER-CITY ATTORNEY-SET PUB HEARING TO AMEND ZONING ORD PLACING 



BEAUTY PARLORS & NAIL SALONS AS CONDITIONAL USES IN COMMERCIAL 
ZONING DISTRICTS 

2 FINANCE DIR-2006 AUDIT 
3. FINANCE DIR-PUB HEARING-2008 TAX LEVY 
4. FINANCE DIR-PARKING ORDINANCES-REVIEW CATEGORIES 
S. FINANCE DIR-PARK.ING ORDINANCES-REVIEW FEES 
6. COLLECTOR-WAIVE RET AIL OVERLAY RESTRICTIONS 
7. FIRE CHIEF-REQ .. RFP FOR FIRE ENGINE 
8. FIRE CHIEF-REQ RFP FOR AMBULANCE VEHICLES 
9. BLDG DIR-ELEV A TOR SAFETY PROGRAM 
10 ODELSON & STERK-METRA PLATFORM LEASE, 2006-2031 

K) CONSENT AGENDA: ALL ITEMS ON THE CONSENT AGENDA ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTlNEIN NATURE AND 

WILL 13E ENACTED IN ONE MOTION. THERE WILL BE NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF THESE ITEMS UNLESS A COUNCIL MEMBER SO 
REQUESTS IN WIHCH EVENT THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA AND CONSIDERED AS THE FIRST ITEM AFTER 
API'IWVAL OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

I. BUDGET CHAIRMAN-PA YROLL-11/14/07-$840,9nOS 
2 BUDGET CHAIRMAN-PAYABLES-II127/07-$890,20S.64 
3. FITZGERALD'S DEER LODGE-UPCOMING EVENTS 
4. YOU CAN MAKE IT -INC-REQ TO SOLICIT 1/24, I12S, & I126/08 

ITEMS SUBMITTED ON TIME 28 

In ncconJancc wilh the provisions of the Americans with disabilities Act any individual who is in the need of n reasonable accommodation in order to pnrticipnte in or 
benefit from attendance at a public meeting of the City of Berwyn should conlact Thomas J Pavlik. City Clerk at 7081788~2660 ns soon as possible before the 
meeting untc 



TABIJE OF CONTENTS 

Itcm(s) 

ROLLCALL 

A. Pledge of Allegiance -Moment of Silence 

R Open Forum 
Topic must NOT be on the Agenda 

Co Presentation of Previous Meeting Minutes for Approval 
L Minutes of Regular Meeting - 11113/07 
2. Minutes of Committee of the Whole- 11113/07 

D. Bid Opening - Tabulations 

E Berwyn Development Corp - Berwyn Township/Health District 

Pages 

1- 8 
1- 3 

I.. Defer BDC 2008 TIF Budget-Req to Defer for additional 2 weeks 1- 6 
2.. BDC-Letter of Recommendation: Homescape Bath & Kitchen 

Design-6823 Roosevelt Road 1- 3 

F. Reports and Communications ITom the Mayor 
I. Official Veto of Ordinance-07-59-City Provide Legal Council 

And Indemnification for Officials 1- I 
2. Exempt Transfer Stamp Fees 1- I 
3. Change of scheduled December City Council Meeting 1- I 
4. Appointments to 911 Board 1- I 
5.. Holiday Schedule 1- I 
6. Bidding for New Firehouse 1- 2 

G Reports and Communications from the City Clerk 
L Rules ofCouncil210.10-Rule 28 1- 5 
2 Legal Review of Codified Ordinances 1- 3 

H. Communications from (Zoning) Board of Appeals 

I. Reports and Communications from Aldermen, Committees, other Boards and Commissions 
1 Defer-Erickson-National Health Care Crisis 1- 2 
2. Defer-Chapman -3500 Euclid-Porch Railings 1- 6 
3. Chapman-Library Personnel Issue 1- I 

November 27, 2007 



1 

T ABLE OF CONTENTS (continued) 

Staff Reports 
I" Defer-City Attorney-Set Pub Hearing to amend zoning Ordinance placing 

Beauty Parlors & Nail Salons as Conditional Uses in Commercial 
Zoning Dist .R For Amendment to zoning Ordinance Placing 

2. Finance Director - 2006 Audit 
3" Finance Director- Pub Hearing -2008 Tax Levy 
4. Finance Director-Parking Ordinances-Review Categories 
5. Finance Director-Parking Ordinances-Review Fees 
6. Collector-Waive Retail Overlay Restriction 
7. Fire Chief-Req. RFP for Fire Engine 
8. Fire Chief-Req RFP for Ambulance Vehicles 
9. Bldg DiL-Elevator Safety Program 
10" Odelson & Sterk-Metra Platform Lease, 2006-2031 

K. Consent Agenda 

I. Budget Chairman-Payroll 11114107-$840,972.05 
2. Budget Chairman - Payables- 11127/07 - $890,205.64 
3. Fitzgeralds Deer Lodge-Upcoming Events 
4" You Can Make It-Inc-Req to Solicit 1/24, 1/25, and 1/26/08 

November 27. 2007 

1- 8 
1- I 
1- 2 
1- 4 
1- 2 
1- I 
1- 1 
1- I 
1- 6 
1- 19 

1- I 
1- 14 
1- I 
1- 3 



Sections A & B 

Pledge of Allegiance-Moment of Silence 

Open Forum 
Topic must NOT be on the Agenda 

Open space for comments or ideas. 



Section C 

Presentation of Previous 

Meeting Minutes For 
Approval 



~ :~HAEL A. O'CONNOR 
MAYOR 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

MINUTES 
BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

NOVEMBER 13, 2007 

1. The regular meeting of the Berwyn City Council was called by Mayor 
O'Connor at 8:16 p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following responded 
present: Chapman, Ramos, Weiner, Skryd, Phelan, Lovero, Erickson. 

2. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and a moment of silence was observed 
in honor of Veterans Day, and for safety of our armed forces, police, 
firefighters, and paramedics. 

3. The Open Forum portion of the meeting was announced. There being no 
speakers, the Open Forum was declared closed. 

4. Erickson made a motion, seconded by Ramos, to suspend the rules and 
bring forth items J-10 and J-11. The motion carried by a voice vote. J-10 
is communication from Chief Kalivoda commending the members on 
Berwyn Truck #904, Berwyn Ambulance #905, and Berwyn 911 Center for 
the quick respond and assistance to a resident in a life threatening 
situation. Thereafter, the chief presented all members with certificates of 
commendation and appreciation. Thereafter, Aimee Sordelli, a resident, 
presented a plaque to the chief with thanks and gratitude to all responsible 
for their actions in saving this young person. Thereafter, Skryd made a 
motion seconded by Erickson, to accept the matter as informational with 
congratulations. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

5. J-5 is a communication from Chief Kalivoda commending members of 
Berwyn Engine #903, Berwyn ALS Ambulance #906, Berwyn BLS 
Ambulance #907, and Berwyn 911 Dispatch Center for their teamwork and 
quick response to a call for assistance for a Berwyn resident. Thereafter, 
Kalivoda present each member with a certificate of commendation with 
thanks. Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to 
accept the matter as informational with thanks. The motion carried by a 
voice vote. 

6. The minutes of the regular City Council meeting and the Committee of the 
Whole held on October 9, 2007 were submitted. Thereafter, Chapman 
made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur and approve as submitted. 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
NOVEMBER n,2007 

The motion carried by the following roll call: Yeas: Chapman, Ramos, 
Weiner, Skryd, Lovero, Nays: none, Abstain: Phelan, Erickson. 

7. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a communication 
regarding a 5 year agreement with the City. Chapman made a motion, 
seconded by Erickson, to amend the contract to be extended from January, 
2008 through May 1, 2009. After discussion, Erickson withdrew his second. 
Thereafter, Chapman's motion was seconded by Phelan, to approve as 
amended and to authorize the corporate authorities to affix their signatures 
thereto. Discussion ensued regarding the matter, The motion carried by 
the following roll call: Yeas: Chapman, Skryd, Phelan, Lovero, Nays: 
Ramos, Weiner, Erickson. 

8. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a communication 
regarding the 2008 TIF budget. Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, 
seconded by Skryd, to approve as submitted, The Mayor noted the BDC 
requested item to be withdrawn, then invoked Rule 28 and removed the 
item from the agenda, Lovero objected, and the objection was seconded 
by Chapman, Attorney Bonebrake stated that an objection to Rule 28 was 
not allowed, Discussion ensued regarding the Mayor's interpretation of Rule 
28 and pa rliamentary procedures, Lovero then stated the there was an 
objection and a seconded on the floor. Bonebrake stated that a 2/3 vote 
was needed to sustain the objection, Thereafter, a vote to sustain the 
objection was taken with Chapman, Skryd, Phelan and Lovero, Aye, 
Ramos, Weiner, Erickson, Nay. After further discussion, Lovero made a 
motion, seconded by Erickson, to defer the matter. The motion carried by 
a voice vote. 

9. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a communication 
regarding the Roosevelt Road Advisory committee RFP approval. 
Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur and 
approve as submitted. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

10. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a communication 
regarding the Roosevelt Road utilities. Skryd made a motion, seconded by 
Erickson, to concur and approve as submitted. The motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote. 

11. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a communication 
regarding the Ogden Avenue alley replacement. Thereafter, Ramos made a 
motion, seconded by Erickson, to concur and approve as submitted. The 
motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

2 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
NOVEMBER 13.2007 

12. Weiner made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to suspend the rules and 
bring forth items F-2, 1-3, and 1-10. The motion carried by a voice vote, 
F-2 is a communication from the Mayor regarding a variation request for 
1604 East Avenue, Weiner made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur 
and approve as submitted. The motion carried by the following roll call: 
Yeas: Chapman, Ramos, Weiner, Skryd, Lovero, Erickson. Nays: Phelan, 

13. 1-3 is a deferred communication from the Ordinance and Resolutions 
committee regarding the Freedom of Information ordinance, Thereafte~, 
Lovero made a motion, seconded by Erickson, to concur and adopt the 
ordinance as amended and to authorize the corporate authorities to affix 
their signatures thereto. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

14. Alderman Phelan submitted an ordinance entitled: 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF BERWYN TO PROVIDE 
LEGAL COUNSEL AND INDEMNIFICATION FOR OFFICIALS, 
EMPLOYEES AND APPOINTEES OF THE CITY IN CERTAIN ACTIONS 
BROUGHT AGAINST SAID OFFICIALS, EMPLOYEES AND 
APPOINTEES. 

Phelan requested that the last sentence in section #7 be stricken, 
Thereafter, Phelan made a motion, seconded by Erickson, to concur and 
approve as amended and to authorize the corporate authorities to affix 
their signatures thereto. The motion carried by the following roll call: Yeas: 
Chapman, Skryd, Phelan, Lovero, Erickson, Nays: Ramos, Weiner. 

15, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Erickson, to excuse Alderman 
Weiner at 8:52 p,m. The motion carried by a voice vote, 

16. The Mayor submitted a proclamation regarding National Hunger and 
Homelessness Awareness Week, Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, 
seconded by Erickson, to concur and adopt the proclamation. The motion 
carried by a voice vote. 

17, The Mayor submitted a communication requesting authorization for Case 
File #7217. Thereafter, Lovero made a motion, seconded by Erickson, to 
concur and approve for payment, The motion carried by the following roll 
call: Yeas: Chapman, Ramos, Skryd, Lovero, Nays: Phelan, Erickson. 
Excused: Weiner 

18. The Mayor submitted a communication regarding the appOintment of 
Patricia McMahon to the Community Relations Commission. Thereafter, 

3 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
NOVEMBER 13.2007 

Chapman made a motion, seconded by Erickson, to concur and approve as 
submitted. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

19. The Mayor submitted a communication requesting the removal of referral 
items from the Committee of the Whole list. Skryd made a motion, 
seconded by Erickson, to accept the matter as informational. The motion 
carried by a voice vote. 

20. The Zoning Board of Appeals submitted a resolution and ordinance 
regarding Cavero Medical Group, Ltd, 7124 Cermak Road. Lovero made a 
motion, seconded by Skryd, to refer to the Committee of the Whole. The 
motion carried by a voice vote. 

21. A deferred communication from Alderman Erickson regarding the National 
Health Care Crisis. Thereafter, Erickson made a motion, seconded by 
Chapman, to defer the matter for two (2) weeks. The motion carried by a 
voice vote. 

22. A deferred communication from Alderman Erickson regarding Council
Manager Government. Alderman Erickson then resubmitted a draft copy of 
a proposed ordinance regarding City Administrator, originally presented on 
November 22, 2005. Thereafter, Erickson made a motion, seconded by 
Ramos, to accept the matter as informational. The motion carried by a 
voice vote. 

23. Alderman Chapman submitted a communication regarding porch railings at 
3500 Euclid Avenue and a request to lower the height requirements for the 
porch railings in order to preserve the historic look of the property. 
Thereafter, the Mayor recognized Building director, Dan LeBeau, who stated 
that it was life safety issue and the height requested was not according to 
the BOCA code and building permits could not be issued. After discussion, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Ramos, to defer and refer the 
matter to the Building department and Law department. The motion 
carried by a voice vote. 

24. Alderman Chapman submitted a communication regarding a re<J,uest for 
height variance for new construction of a garage at 6714 W. 34t Street'. 
After discussion, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Erickson, to 
approve as submitted and to refer to the Law department to draft a 
variation to the zoning ordinance. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

25. Alderman Chapman submitted a communication regarding the creation of 
business parking in the Depot District and to allow each business to 
purchase two (2) parking stickers and to amend the request to be 

4 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
NOVEMBER 13.2007 

consistent with the parking permits issued for Kenilworth Avenue, effective 
January 1, 2008. Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by 
Ramos, to concur and approve as amended. The motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote with Weiner excused. 

26. Alderman Chapman submitted a request for a handicap sign for Lucille 
Tagliere, 3829 Wesley Avenue. Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, 
seconded by Skryd, to overrule the investigating officer, grant permission, 
and to refer to the Public Works department to install said sign. The 
motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote with Weiner excused. 

27. Alderman Chapman submitted a request for a handicap sign for Robert 
Burns, 3740 Wisconsin Avenue. Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, 
seconded by Phelan, to overrule the investigating officer, grant permission, 
and to refer to the Public Works department to install said sign. The 
motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote with Weiner excused. 

28. Alderman Skryd submitted a communication regarding GAIA and USA Gain 
Clothing collection boxes. After discussion, Skryd made a motion, 
seconded by Erickson, to refer the matter to the Committee of the Whole 
and the Law department for review. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

29. A deferred communication from the Finance director regarding Water Rate 
analysis. Thereafter, Lovero made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to 
suspend the rules and bring for item J-6 as germane. The motion carried 
by a voice vote. J-6 is an ordinance submitted by the City Attorney 
entitled: 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1048 OF THE CODIFIED 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 
FOR WATER AND SEWER RATE ADJUSTMENTS TO FUND 
DEPRECIATION 

Thereafter, Lovero made a motion, seconded by Erickson, to concur and 
adopt the ordinance as submitted and to authorize the corporate 
authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by the 
following roll call: Yeas: Chapman, Ramos, Skryd, Lovero, Erickson. Nays: 
Phelan. Excused: Weiner. 

30. The City Attorney submitted requesting to set Public Hearing for 
amendment to Zoning Ordinance placing Beauty Parlors and Nail Salons as 
Conditional Uses in all commercial zoning districts. Thereafter, Lovero 
made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to defer and refer the matter to the 
Committee of the Whole. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

5 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
NOVEMBER 13.2007 

31. The City Attorney submitted a communication regarding Clear View of 
Liquor establishments with attached draft of ordinance. After discussion! 
Lovero made a motion! seconded by Chapman! to refer to the matter to the 
Committee of the Whole. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

32. The City Attorney submitted a communication regarding an amendment to 
the Newspaper Vending Machine ordinance. Chapman made a motion! 
seconded by Skryd! to refer the matter to a joint meeting of the Building! 
Zoning! and Planning committee and the Historical Preservation 
commission. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

33. The City Attorney/Collector submitted an item for the agenda regarding 
Interim Retail Overlay provisions. Thereafter! the City Attorney requested 
the item be withdrawn. Chapman made a motion! seconded by Erickson! to 
withdraw the item. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

34. The City Attorney submitted an ordinance entitled: 

AN ORDINANCE ADJUSTING SOLID WASTE COLLECTION FEES FOR 
THE 2008 FISCAL YEAR IN THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, 
ILLINOIS 

Thereafter! Lovero made a motion! seconded by Erickson! to concur and 
adopt the ordinance as presented and to authorize the corporate 
authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried by the 
following roll call: Yeas: Chapman! Ramos! Skryd! Lovero! Erickson. Nays: 
Phelan. Excused: Weiner. 

35. The Finance director submitted a communication regarding the 2006 
audited financial statements which will be reviewed at the November 27th 

Committee of the Whole. Thereafter! Chapman made a motion! seconded 
by Ramos! to accept the matter as informational. The motion carried by a 
voice vote. 

36. Chief of Police Kushner submitted a communication regarding a proposed 
amendment to Seizure and Impoundment ordinance. Thereafter! Skryd 
made a motion! seconded by Erickson! to concur and adopt. After further 
discussion! the motion was withdrawn. Thereafter! Lovero made a motion! 
seconded by Chapman! to refer the matter to the Committee of the Whole. 
The motion carried by a voice vote. 

37. The Public Works director submitted a communication regarding the 
approval of emergency purchase of a Street Sweeper. Thereafter! Erickson 

6 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
NOVEMBER 13.2007 

made a motion, seconded by Lovero, to concur and to approve the 
communication as submitted and to waive the bidding process. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote with Weiner excused. 

38. The Director of Computer services submitted a communication regarding 
the transition of Database Consultant to a full time employee. Thereafter, 
Chapman made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to refer the matter to the 
Committee of the Whole. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

39. The Director of Neighborhood Affairs submitted a contract for Pest Control 
services for the year 2008. Thereafter, Lovero made a motion, seconded 
by Erickson, to concur, approve for payment, and to authorize the 
corporate authorities to affix their signatures thereto. The motion carried 
by a unanimous roll call vote with Weiner excused. 

40. The Library director submitted a communication acknowledging the 
response of the Public Works department for services rendered. 
Thereafter, Chapman made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to accept the 
matter as informational. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

41. The Consent Agenda items K-1 through K-lO were submitted: 
K-1 The Budget chairman submitted the payroll for October 31, 2007 in 

total amount of $771,618.88. 
K-2 The Budget chairman submitted the payables for November 13, 2007 

in the total amount of $1,468,029.33. 
K-3 The building director submitted the building permits issued in 

October, 2007 
K-4 The Collector submitted the business licenses issued for October, 

2007 
K-5 Alderman Ramos submitted a handicap request for Marian Istenik, 

3544 Cuyler, with recommendation to approve the request. 
K-6 Alderman Weiner submitted a handicap request for Raoul Lovendahl, 

2716 Euclid with a recommendation to approve the request. 
K-7 Alderman Skryd submitted a handicap request for Ruth DeSantos, 

2508 Harvey with a recommendation to deny the request. 
K-8 Alderman Skryd submitted a handicap request ford James Suarez, 

2824 Cuyler with a recommendation to deny the request. 
K-9 Alderman Lovero submitted a request for a handicap sign for Blanche 

Krofta, 1500 Kenilworth with a recommendation to deny the request. 
K-10 Alderman Lovero submitted a request for a handicap sign for Thomas 

Woytus, 1836 Kenilworth with a recommendation to approve the 
request. 

7 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
NOVEMBER 13,1007 

Ramos made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur and approve by 
Omnibus Vote Designation, 

42, The Mayor called a Committee of the Whole meeting for Tuesday, 
November 27, 2007 at 6:00 p,m, for referrals, 

43, Alderman Skryd called an Administration committee meeting for Monday, 
November 26,2007 at 6:00 p,m, for referrals, 

44, There being no further business to come before the meeting, same was, 
after a motion by Ramos, seconded by Skryd, to adjourn at the hour of 
9:52 p,m, by unanimous voice vote, 

itted, 

8 



MINUTES 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

NOVEMBER 13, 2007 

L The Committee of the Whole was called to order by Mayor O'Connor at 
6: 12 p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following responded present: 
Chapman, Ramos, Lovero, Erickson. Absent: Weiner, Skryd, Phelan. 
Thereafter, the Mayor declared a quorum present and the meeting duly 
convened for further business. 

2. Lovero made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to excuse Weiner, Skryd, 
and Phelan. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

Phelan present at 6: 13 p.m. 

3. 911 Board Presentation-The Mayor introduced Commander O'Halloran of 
the Berwyn Police department who gave a presentation (see attached) 
regarding 911 Communication Center Operations and reviewed same. 

Skryd present at 6:15 p.m. 

The 911 presentation continued with a Power point presentation by Richard 
Tucker a representative for the 911 Board. Thereafter, Mayor O'Conno'r 
questioned where the 911 receives its funds; answer, 911 phone surcharge 
for every Berwyn customer who has a landline or cellular phone. The 
presentation continued with Curtis Nekovar, communications officer, who 
gave a presentation on how Berwyn's 911 Center operates (see attached 
power point). Thereafter, the Mayor questioned the number of 
communication operators we will have when full staffed, answer 16 staff 
members. The Mayor then questioned if any portion of their salary is 
funded by the 911 funds. Nekovar answered, yes only part-time positions. 
The Mayor questioned if there were any plans to expand to full-time 
employees; answer, no plans at the present time. The Mayor thanked all 
for taking time to give the presentation. 

4. The Mayor introduced Finance director, Stephanie Walker, regarding the 
proposed 2008 budget which has been provided to all aldermen. Ms. 
Walker gave an overview. Discussion ensued regarding the Public Hearing 
for the Tax Levy. Ms. Walker suggested publishing the notice for a 5% 
increase and stated that this does not mean that we have to raise taxes by 
5%. During the Public Hearing and before acceptance by the City Counci~, 
the levy may be amended for less than 5%. Discussion ensued regarding 
time frame for the Public Hearing. Discussion was for having the hearing 



COMMIITEE OF THE WHOLE 
NOVEMBER 13, 2007 

on December 11th at 6 p.m. just prior to the Committee of the Whole 
meeting. The Mayor took a consensus 6-0 in favor. The Mayor then asked 
for aldermen to consider moving the December 27th City Council meeting 
to December 18th and passing the Tax Levy at that time or if all are in 
agreement for the tax levy, passing it at the December 11th Council 
meeting. Ms. Walker discussed holding a Public Hearing for the Budget on 
the same night of the Levy is presented. Alderman Lovero stated that he 
would prefer having the hearing on a separate night. The Mayor gave Ms. 
Walker instructions to prepare a communication for the November 27th City 
Council meeting addressing and having a Public Hearing for the Budget 
after the 1st of the year. Ms. Walker stated that she would prefer having 
the Budget hearing prior to the 1st of the year. Discussion on the possibility 
of rescheduling the November 20th Budget meeting, at which time the 
2008 budget will be discussed. Aldermen Chapman, Ramos, Skryd, Phelan 
stated that they will not be able to attend on November 20th

• 

5. Stephanie Walker, Finance director, reported that the 2006 audit has been 
completed and has been forwarded to all aldermen for review. Ms. Walker 
stated that Dan Berg of Sikich, LLP will be at the November 27th Committee 
of the Whole meeting to present and discuss the 2006 audit and will be 
available for any questions. 

6. Water Rate Increase-Ms Walker stated that she has not heard anything 
from the City of Chicago on future increases and stated that in order to get 
into the next billing cycle of water bills, the increase needs to be passed 
tonight. Alderman Lovero questioned the increase from Waste 
Management. Ms. Walker stated that it is approximately 4.1% for garbage 
and 5% for water. Alderman Lovero questioned why the increase for 
garbage is 5% when the increase from Waste Management is only 4.1%. 
Lovero questioned how much this would be in dollars amounts. Walker 
stated approximately $1 dollar a month increase for garbage and the 5% 
increase for water would be approximately be $15.00 a year per resident, 
Aldermen questioned if the City of Chicago raises rates, would Berwyn raise 
rates again. The Mayor answered yes; if the City of Chicago raises rates 
the City of Berwyn would need a second increase. 

7. The Mayor introduced Richard Bruen of Odelson & Sterk regarding agenda 
item 1-3, Ordinance for the Freedom of Information Officer, Odelson & 
Sterk gave an opinion that calling the Clerk "Officer" does not comply with 
Illinois Statutory definition of the term Officer and suggested amending the 
ordinance to read "The Director of Information". Alderman Lovero, 
chairman of the Ordinance and Resolutions committee, who presented th~ 
ordinance and stated that he would not have a problem amending the 
language accordingly. The Mayor then objected to the Clerk having sole 

2 



COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
NOVEMBER 13,1007 

powers over Freedom of Information procedures, Clerk Pavlik stated that 
the intention was for the Clerk's office to set a policy and present to Council 
for approval, Alderman Lovero reiterated that he would not have a problem 
amending the language in the ordinance. 

8, A communication from the Zoning Board of Appeals regarding the Cavero 
Medical Group, LTD, 7124 Cermak Road, Discussion ensued regarding 
bring the matter to the Committee of the Whole. 

9. Skryd made a motion, seconded by Chapman, to close the Committee elf 
the Whole for contract negotiations, pending litigation, personnel, review 
of closed minutes at 7:17 p.m. The motion carried. 

The open portion of the Committee of the Whole resumed at 8 pm. All 
aldermen present at this time. 

10. Agenda item I-10-Ordinance presented by Alderman Phelan regarding 
litigation involving elected officials. Attorney Richard Bruen of Odelson & 
Sterk questioned what part is different from the Tort Law. Alderman 
Phelan stated that several other communities have the same ordinance or 
similar ordinances in place. Alderman Weiner questioned Alderman Phelan 
on the author of the ordinance. After discussion, the Mayor asked for the 
communication be referred to the Law department. 

11. There being no further business to come before the meeting, same was, 
after a motion by Erickson, seconded by Chapman, to adjourn the 
Committee of the Whole at 8:06 p.m. 

'tted, 

3 



Section D 

Bid penings -= 

Tabulations 



Section E 

Berwyn Development Corp" 
Berwyn Township/Health District 



CITY OF BERWYN 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING November 27, 2007 

Deferred Communication 

Agenda Item :E.~ ':1 is a Deferred Communication from C C Meeting dated 11/13/07 Agenda item ,,-,/I 8"--__ 

From: Berwyn Development Corporation 

Re: BDC 2008 TIF Budget 

Tempiete -,x1s 



be/wlln developrnent 
CORPORATION 

November~, 2007 

Michael A. O'Connor, Mayor 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn Ci~ Hall 
6700 W. 261 Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: Berwyn Development Corporation 2008 TIF Budget 

Dear Mayor and Council: 

I am requesting that the City Council defer this agenda item for 2 weeks I am 
meeting with the City's Finance Director to ensure that we capture her thoughts 
regarding our budget 

Respectfully, 7) 

-.3~ r:;u-

3322 S, Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708.788.8100 

fax: 708.7880966 

www.berwyn.net 

Brian Pabst 
Executi ve Director 



lerwyn developrnent 
CORPORATION 

3322 SOak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708,788B100 

fax:70B78B0966 

wwwberwyn,net 

November 13,2007 

Michael A. O'Connor, Mayor 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn Ci!J: Hall 
6700 W. 261 Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

~.,-----------

Re: Berwyn Development Corporation 2008 TIF Budget 

Dear Mayor and Council: 

Over the years, the BDC and City have accomplished numerous economic 
development and marketing related projects. This team oriented approach has 
resulted in many fayade renovations and business enhancements both in size and 
quality in the City of Berwyn's four commercial districts. Together, the BDC and 
the City have also pursued the creation of additional residential and commercial 
space along with the successful launch of an integrated marketing program that 
has generated a positive spirit, awareness and press for the area, We are looking 
forward to bringing to fruition the numerous development opportunities that we 
are currently working on, in addition to the enhanced special events such as 
Berwyn's Great American Mutt Show, the two·day Oktoberfest, Open Markets, 
Rt 66 Car Show, etc, 

As we move forward, there are exciting times ahead. As previously mentioned at 
our BDC/City goals and objectives meeting, we need to accomplish many 
identified tasks associated with our redevelopment, marketing and special events 
plans, First and foremost, we are currently analyzing each TIF district in order to 
make sure we are utilizing them in the most efficient manner. This entails 
ensuring we are receiving the appropriate revenue from each PIN within the 
particular district. Our plan also includes: 

• identifying other potential redevelopment opportunities 
• expanding the boundaries and budget if deemed necessary 
• providing strategies for under·performing PIN's/properties 
• examining the length of each TIF 
• making recommendations to the council 

In addition, we have completed all prior TIF audits and we are currently working 
on the 2006 TIF audit Additionally, we are conducting parking studies where 
appropriate, pursuing the raised median proj ect for the Cermak corridor, 
developing a plan to replace failed infrastructure along the Roosevelt Road 
corridor as a precursor to the responsibilities associated with our efforts as a part 
of the Roosevelt Road Advisory Committee, etc. As a result of properly 
managed/enhanced TIF districts, the City will realize a substantial amount of 



additional revenue. Conversely, if we do not properly manage/enhance our TIF 
'.: districts, the City could lose millions in revenue (Super-block site, etc). 

,erwyn developl11ent 
CORPORATION 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708.788.8100 

fax: 708.788.0966 

www.berwyn.net 

In order to achieve these and other identified goals, we need to continue to retain 
the appropriate professionals. For example, in an effort to mininuze future 
contract spending that is above and beyond the yearly approved TIF budget, I 
have included estimated expenses for professional services and other related costs 
in this year's budget, such as TIF analyses, public hearings, other statutory 
requirements and related legal fees, parking studies, etc. In this manner, the BDC 
Board and City Council will have access to more accurate data regarding 2008 
IIF expenses. Under this system, the BDC will minimize the need to have 
additional monies approved at a later time regarding already identified projects. 

The BDC is very optimistic about Berwyn's future. With the City Council's 
continued willingness to utilize our TIF districts to invest funds in our 
development efforts, the BDC/City team can continue to accomplish many 
pr()jects to ensure the successful future of Berwyn. 

In order to accomplish our developmental goals as outlined in the TIF corridor 
redevelopment plans, and other related city goals (marketing and special events) 
we need your continued support. At this time, we are requesting your approval of 
our 2008 budget that will enable the BJ)C/City partnership to continue to achieve 
our redevelopment efforts and goals. 

The BDC's 200~ TIF budget request is for $1,131,419 and is broken out as 
follows: 

L Ogden TIF: 
2. Cermak TIF: 
3. Depot TIF 
4. Roosevelt TIF: 

$496,080 
$496,080 
$ 98,699 
$ 40,560 

The budget request reflects a 4% increase in funding as indicated in the city 
projections. These requested monies include legal and consulting work related to 
TlF administration, Joint Review Board meetings, statutory TIF reporting, 
boundary analyses, economic development project analyses, etc. 

Last year, the BDC received its requested TIF funding by March 23, 2007. We 
would be appreciative if the City could once again expedite our request. 

Respectfully, 

JJ~~ 
Brian Pabst 
Executive Director 



Berwyn Development Corporation 
Budget 

Income 

Admi1Jistration 

City of Berwyn Grant 
TIF Administration 

Cermal{ TIF 
Depot District TIF 

Ogden TIF 
Roosevelt Road TIF 

Total TIF Administration 

Total City of Benvyn 

DeEO Grant Income Acct. 

Interest ~ Loans 

Interest - Invested Funds 

Total Administration 

Membership 
Membership Renewals 
New Memberships 

Total.Membership 

Mise. Programs 
Annual Holiday Event 
BIFF Revenues 
BAH, Breakfast Mtgs, Lunches 
BAC Revenues 

Depot Dist. Events Revenues 
Rt. 66 Car Show Revenues 
SeminarslEduc 

Business Sen'ices 

Commercial Loan Fees 
TIF Proj App Fcc 
New Resident Sponsorship 

Total ,Mise. Programs 

ltlarketi1lg Committee 
BDC Directory 
BDC Web Directory 
BDCColoring Book 
Marketing - Other 
Cnrtopia 

Total Marketing 

M:\Budgets\20D8\08 Budget· submitted copy Sent to Stephanie Oct 26 2007 xIs 

07 Budget 

86,000.00 

477,000.00 
94,903.00 

477,000.00 

39,000.00 

1,087,903.00 

1,173,903.00 

250,000.00 

12,000.00 

1,435,903.00 

25,000.00 
2,000.00 

27,000.00 

15,000.00 

15,000.00 

2,000.00 
500.00 

32,500.00 

10,000.00 

5,500.00 

15,500.00 

Proposed 
08 Budget 

86,000.00 

496,080.00 

98,699.00 
496,080.00 

40,560.00 

1,131,419.00 

1,217,419.00 

250,000.00 

35,000.00 

1,502,419.00 

25,000.00 
3,000.00 

28,000.00 

1,000.00 

15,000.00 

15,000.00 

2,000.00 
500.00 

33,500.00 

6,000.00 

4,000.00 

10,000.00 

Page 1 of4 



Berwyn Development Corporation 

Pie.er Award 

Sponsorships 
Silent Auction 

PiperTix 

Total Piper Award 

Publicatiotls 

Mailing List 
Newsletters 

Total Publications 

Gain 011 property 

Total Income 

Expenses 

Administrative 
Bank Service Charges 

Donations 
Board Expense 
Dues and Subscriptions 

IlF Project Expenses 

Licenses and Permits 
General & Administr'ative 
Insurance (Liability) 

Total Administrative 

Loall Expense 

Interest Lonns Payable 

Loan Program Costs 

Legal Fees 

T Dial L.OUIJ Expense 

Budget 

07 Budget 

3,000 . .00 
2,000.00 

6,000.00 

11,000.00 

5000 
3,000.00 

3,050.00 

1,524,953.00 

150.00 

1,40000 
5,000.00 

12,000.00 

8,000.00 
8,500.00 

35,050.00 

225,000.00 

1,000.00 

18,000.00 

244,000.00 

M:\Budgets\200S\OB Budget- submitted copy Sent to Stephanie Oct 26 2007 xis 

Pro(!osed 
08 Budget 

3,000.00 
2,000.00 

6,000.00 

11,000.00 

50.00 
3,000.00 

3,050.00 

1,587,969.00 

15000 
2,000.00 
1,400.00 
5,00000 

15,000.00 
150.00 

8,000.00 
8,500.00 

40,200.00 

225,000.00 

1,00000 
18,000.00 

244,000.00 

Page 2 of4 



berwyn developrnent 
CORPORATION 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708.788Bl00 

fax: 708.788.0966 

www.berwyn.net 

November 19, 2007 

Mayor Michael O'Connor 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re LeHer of Recommendation: 
HomeScape Bath and Kitchen Design - 6823 W. Roosevelt Road 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

In the summer of 2007, HomeScape Bath and Kitchen Design rel,ocated from 
Oak Park to Berwyn occupying a vacant building located at 6823 W; 
Roosevelt Road. 

HomeScape rehabbed the interior space, creating a retail showroom for their 
kitchen and bath products and to accommodate office space for their 
development and general contracting company. The owners, Mr. Jonathon 
Shack and Mr. Peter Korab and the entire HomeScape staff are very excited to 
be part of the revitalization that is taking place along Roosevelt Road. 

On October 1 8, 2007, the Berwyn Development Corporation's (BDC) 
Cermak/Roosevelt Road TIF Committee voted and agreed to recommend 
HomeScape with their variance regarding signage and fencing. 

The following is a description of the variance being proposed by HomeScape: 

• Installing two (30"wide X 40"in height) signs that will extend 24" across 
the sidewalk. Each sign would be attached to metal poles that will be 
securely fastened to the fa,ade of the building along Roosevelt Road. 

• HomeScape currently has a 6' masonry fence along the rear parking 
lot. This lot is used to keep equipment and construction materials 
secured in addition to a truck that's parked overnight. Since their 
relocation to Berwyn, HomeScape has experienced a few thefts and it's 
in their best interest to raise the fence by 2'. The taller fence will also 
serve as an additional barrier regarding neighbor visibility. 

Respectfully, 

Brian Pabst 
Executive Director 
Berwyn Development Corporation 



- 24" X 40" SUNBRELLA FABRIC CANVAS BANNER 
Signco Inc. Melrose Pari<, IL 
Phone: 701>-865-1717 
FAX: 708-865-1728 
slgnco@ameritech.net 



I 30" I 

r-24" I 



Section F 

Reports and Communications 
From The Mayor 



..... rr ... .,t;Trnlif 1 BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
MICHAEL Ao O'CONNOH, Mayor 

26th Street· Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Telephone; (708) 788·2660 • fax; (708) 788-2567 
\, • .11'11'\'11 berwyn~,il gov 

To: Members ofthe 
City Council 

November 20, 2007 

Re: Official Veto of Ordinance 07-59 "Authorizing the City of Berwyn to Provide 
Legal Counsel and Indemnification for Officials, Employees and Appointees of the 
City in Actions Brought Against said Officials." 

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 

It is my intent to veto the above stated ordinance numbered 07-590 It is my belief 
as well as that of our attorneys, Odelson & Sterk, that this issue is currently 
addressed in the Illinois Tort Law therefore, there is no need to attempt to amend 
our current ordinance. 

Sincerely, 

7l1JtkQa( Ot~ 
Michael A O'Connor 
Mayor 

MAO/dr 



"IrnfT'~Tr"'f# OF BERWYN ILLINOIS 
MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Telephone: (70B) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 

To: Members of the 
City Council 

Re: Exempt Transfer Stamp Fees 

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 

November 20, 2007 

The increase in foreclosures due to the current down turn in the real estate 
market has caused a large administrative burden on the Building Department in 
the way of maintenance issues, legal fees and billing services. In order to recover 
some ofthese costs incurred by the City, our attorney, Jim Healy, has 
recommended we increase the Exempt Transfer Stamp Fee from $100 to $500. 
Please refer this communication to the Legal Department for amendment of the 
current ordinance. 

Sincerely, 

91(~flJ) ~tf)L-
Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

MAOldr 



ilr>TY/r,> 2l OF BERWYN I ILLINOIS 
MICHAEL A O'CONNOR, Ma,yoy 

6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Thlcphonc: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 
\\""'Vo[ berw.yn-il gov 

To: Members of the 
City Council 

Re: Change of Scheduled December City Council Meeting 

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 

November 20, 2007 

It would be my recommendation to reschedule the City Council meeting set for 
December 27, 2007 to December 18, 2007. I have discussed this with the Finance 
Director and she is confident the payables can wait until January 8, 2008. 

Sincerely, 

Cj1fdCaJL~ aj9!~-
Michael A O'Connor 
Mayor 

MAOldr 



ILLINOIS 
MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Th1ephonc: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 
,,\\,,',rv,r ben .... ryn~:il gOY 

To: Members of the 
City Council 

Re: Appointments to 911 Board 

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 

November 20, 2007 

Pursuant to our ordinance, I would like to appoint Officer Frank Cimaglia, 
Fireman Richard Swade and Fireman James Zahorbsky to the 911 Board as 
public safety representatives to serve the three year term ending 11/27/10 and 
Officer Thomas O'Halloran and Fireman Denis O'Halloran to serve the two year 
term ending 11/27/09. Your approval would be appreciated. 

Sincerely, 

<=JJ ~d<u.Q Cl {D ~fJZ---
Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

MAOldr 



BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, minais 60402-070] • Telephone: (708) 788·2660 • fax: (708) 788-2567 
\\T'lN\V berwyn-il gov 

To: Members of the 
City Council 

Re: Holiday Schedule 

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 

November 20, 2007 

Although Christmas Eve and New Year's Eve are not designated holidays, I would 
like to propose all non'emergency employees be allowed to begin their holiday at 
1:30 pm on December 24, 2007 and December 31,2007. I would ask that 
employees with a 9:00am start time would work through to the 1:30pm end time 
without a lunch break. Approving this request now will allow fOl- managers and 
employees to plan their holiday schedule and provide all City Buildings adequate 
time to inform the public of the changes in our regular schedule. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Cl)/(~ a to ~L_ 
Mlchael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

MAO/dr 



£",y";'", ~F~ERWYN I ILLINOIS 
MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, II1inois G0402-070l • Thlephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 
V·,f'v .. 'W be rwyn-iJ gov 

November 20, 2007 

To: Members of the 
City Council 

Re: Bidding for New Firehouse 

Dear Ladies and Gentlemen: 

• 
The plans and bidding documents have been prepared for the construction of the 
new firehouse on 16th Street It would be my recommendation to post the 
advertising for bids_ 

Sincerely, 

Michael A. O'Connor 
Mayor 

MAOldr 



City of Berwyn Wold Architect and Engineers 
New 16th Street Fire Station August 9, 2007 

2007 2008 

J J A S 0 N D J F M A M J J A S 0 N D 

BASEMENT & ELEVATOR 
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT .... 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

BIDDING • AWARD OF BIDS .. 
RELOCATE TO HOUSE ~ 
DEMOLITION I SITE PREP. ~ , 

CONSTRUCTION ! 

USE OF APPARATUS BAY 1* 
I 
1 

FULL OCCUPANCY _ L. * I 
. - ,- - .. - - -- - -- -- .. -~ ~ ~----

L- _____ 

Commission No.023014 



Section G 

Reports and Communications 
From The City Clerk 



BERWYN ILLINOIS Building A New Belwyn 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 
Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2675 • wwwberwyn-i1.gov 

November 20,2007 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

To: Mayor and members of City Council 

Re: Rules of Council 21 0.1 0, Rule 28 

Ladies and Gentlemen; 

Attached you will find my communication from March 2007, that was submitted for your 
review as Alderman Information Only and was not introduce as a council item at the 
time. Once again the use of Rule 28 has been applied to an item on the agenda and there 
has been debate over its use and its interpretation on how and when it is to be used. I 
respectfully re-submit my original communication, along with the CUTrent text of Rule 28 
I would ask this Council to consider referring this matter to the Ordinance and Resolution 
COlllmittee for possible amendment of Rule 28 or incorporating the attached 
interpretation or Palts there of, into the Ordinance, so as to better define its use and 
application. 



THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS Bui1i1illgANewBeJwga 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 

6700 West 26th Street. Benryn, illinois 60402-D70l . 
Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2675 • www.berwyn-il.gov 

March 16, 2007 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

To: Mayor, City Council Members, and City Attorneys 

Re: Rule 28 

I have been concerned with the actions taken and the interpretations of Rule 28 by the 
Mayor, Council Members and the City Attorneys. I believe when a Law or an Ordinance 
is created it sometimes leaves room for interpretation. When this happens, I think and the 
general consensus of the courts is always to go back to the original intent of those who 
enacted the law. I offer you an opinion of Rule 28 from attorney Larry Zdarsky, former 
Aldern1an, and Cooperation council fbr the City of Berwyn .. Mr. Zdarsky was 
instrumental in not only creating, but implementing Rule 28. Please review the attached. I 
think this is the only logical interpretation of the use of Rule 28, and anyone with 
common sense should agree. Hopefully we can put this matter behind and move this 
council forward .. 

L Zdarsky 
B. Odelson, O&S 



March 12,2007 

TO: City Clerk, Thomas Pavlik 

FROM: Former Alderman Larry Zdarsky 

RE: City Council Rule 28 

It has come to my attention that there may be some confusion and/or a 
difference of interpretation concerning Berwyn City Council Rule 28. Having 
been intimately involved with the Ordinance Amendments that revised the 
Council Rules in 1989; I can provide you with the Legislative History. 

1. Legislative Purpose of Rule 28: Prior to the 1989 revisions; No 
council agenda item could be acted upon at the first meeting it was presented; 
and the Mayor OR any Council Member could request that any agenda matter be 
deferred to the next council meeting. As Council used to meet weekly, this 
presented no particular problem. However, by 1989, Council met only twice per 
month. The practice of item deferral could have been, and was being, used as a 
sort of ''filibuster" technique to delay and impede City business. Because it was 
obvious that c-.ertain matters needed to be, and should have been, appropriately 
acted on at presentment at the first meeting, a mechanism was put in place 
within Rule 28. 

The new Rule 28, still provides for referral of matters to committee and 
provides for the Mayor or a council member to request deferral to the subsequent 
meeting. However, to avoid misuse of the system, a mechanism was put into 
place, whereby any request for deferral by the Mayor or Council member could 
be obiected to. If an objection was raised the objection was to be voted upon. If 
6 votes are obtained to sustain the objection, then the matter is not deferred; and 
the agenda item may be acted upon immediately by CounciL 

I know that this was the purpose, as I was the initial proponent of the Rule. 
It provided a good balance that protected any council member's right to defer, but 
at the same time provided for immediate action when necessary; and eliminated 
anyone, including the Mayor from abusing the deferral mechanism. 

2. The Plain Wording Of Rule 28: Rule 28 specifically states: "Matters 
may be deferred by order of the chair or at the reguest of a council member 
if there is no objection. If an objection is raised, the deferred matter shall 
2e brought to a vote, and a two-thirds vote of the Council shall sustain the 
objection." Rules of statutory construction dictate that the plain meaning of a 
provision should be given full weight. Here the plain meaning is obvious. An 
objection can be raised to any deferral, whether the deferral is made by the 
Mayor or an Alderman. Any such objection must be brought to a vote to 
determine if the matter is to be deferred or acted upon. There is no room for any 
other interpretation. 

1 



This Rule has over the last several years been invoked by any number of 
people with strange interpretations that are obviously intended to further less 
than noble purposes. These include: 

a. A Mayor attempting to defer a matter; and failing to recognize an 
obiection to the deferral, or bring that objection to a vote. In the past, the Mayor's 
attorneys have taken the ridiculous posture that the right to object to the deferral 
only applies when the deferral is requested by a council member, not the Mayor. 
There is no support for this position. The Rule language quoted above makes no 
such distinction. Further, there is no punctuation in the sentence that could 
conceivably justify that the objection portion of the sentence only applies to a 
council rnember's deferral and not the Mayor's. Lastly, such a misguided 
interpretation makes absolutely no legal sense, as it would totally destroy the 
exact purpose of the Rule; to allow for action on a matter when first presented. 

b. An objection to the deferral being raised; and then just taking a vote on 
the underlying matter, not on the objection itself. This was a favorite misguided 
interpretation of the last administration. If an opponent asked for a deferral; a 
mernber of the majority would simply object. The then City Attorney would then 
state that if Rule 28 was invoked, the proper procedure was to vote on the 
underlying matter. Wrong! You vote on the objection first, to ascertain if two
thirds of the council agrees that the rnatter should not be deferred. 

c. It should further be noted that Rule 29, provides for the applicability of 
Roberts Rules Of Order. Therefore, any improper ruling of the Chair can be 
appealed immediately; and the Mayor has no choice but to entertain such 
motions to appeal the ruling of the chair. 

If you have any further inquiry, please feel free to contact me. I hope that 
this brief summary of the purpose for Rule 28 will help to clear up any confusion; 
or at least expose those who would attempt to use Rule 28 for their own devious 
purposes. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Larry Zdarsky 

2 



ALP Page 11 of 18 

Rule 23 Adjournment A motion to adjourn Council will always 
be in order except: 

(a) When a member is in possession of the floor: 

(b) While the yeas and nays are being called: 

(c) When the members are voting; 

(d) When adjournment was the last preceding motion; or 

(e) When it has been decided that the previous question shall be 
taken. 

Rule 24. Motions to Adjourn A motion simply to adjourn shall not 
be subject to amendment or debate, but a motion to adjourn to a time 
certain shall be so subject. 

Rule 25 . To Adjourn Over One or More Regular Meetings. 
Council may at any time adjourn over one or more regular meetings 
by a vote of a majority of all the aldermen authorized by law to be 
elected. 

Rule 26. Standing Committees The standing committees shall be 
as set forth in Section 210.14. 

Rule 27 Duties of Standing Committees. The duties and 
jurisdiction of the respective standing committees shall be as set forth 
in Section 210.15. 

Rule 28. Action at Meeting When Subject Introduced. All 
ordinances, petitions, resolutions, orders and communications to 
Council may be refelTed to appropriate committees by majority vote 
of the Councilor by order of the Chair, without objecting to them to 
be acted upon on the report of the committee having the same in 
charge. Matters not referred to committee shall be acted upon 
presentation unless deferred for action at the subsequent meeting. 
Matters may be deferred by order of the Chair or at the request of a 
Council member if there is no objection. If an objection is raised, the 
deferred matter shall be brought to a vote, and a two-thirds vote of the 
Council shall sustain the objection. 

Rule 29. Application of "Robert's Rules of Order." The rules of 
parliamentary practice comprised in the latest published edition of 
Robert's Rules of Order shall govern Council in all cases to which 
such rules are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with 
this section 

Rule 30. Temporary Suspension of Rules. The rules of Council set 
forth in this section may be temporarily suspended by a vote of two-

http://www.amlegal com/nxt/gateway .dlll! II inois/berwyniparttwo-administrationcode/ti tie.. 11/20/2007 



~..,1vOF BERWYN, ILLINOIS Building A New Belwyn 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 
Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2675 • wwwberwyn-il.gov 

November 20, 2007 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

To: Mayor and City Council 

Re: Legal Review of Codified Ordinances 

Ladies and Gentlemen; 

As you know, the City of Berwyn has not had a Legal Review or a Re-Codification since 
1984. Shortly after taking office it became apparent that at the minimum, a Legal Review 
was merited. After numerous discussions with American Legal, our current Code 
publisher and other companies, it became apparent this was going to be costly to the city. 
I successfully negotiated not only the best possible price, for the Legal Review, but also 
incorporated the Re-Codification into the contract, thus saving the city the cost of the 
Legal Review, $2,750, which was to be credited towards the Re-Codification price. 
The time fiame was as follows, entered into agreement for Legal Review, late October 

2006 American Legal agreed to expedite the review and return before the end of 2006, 
so the cost would be incurred within the 2006 Budget, the review was returned two weeks 
ahead of schedule and in my hands by the end of November 2006. The Re-Codification 
process was approved by Council in December of 2007 and the Legal Review was 
referred to the City Attorney on 12-12-06. The Re-Codification Agreement was signed by 
the end of December 2006, to be billed to the 2007 Budget. The expected turn around 
was estimated at 30-60 days for the city's attollleys to complete the review of the Legal 
Review. I was to turn the Legal Review back to AM Legal within the first quarter of 
2007. Their estimated completion for the Re-Codification process was June 2007. 
It is now November 20,2007 and the city's ordinances have not been updated since July 

of 2006. Normally I have it updated every six months, but because of the Legal Review 
and the Re-Codificationl was able to hold off and AM Legal had included the nOll1lal 
cost for the updates into the total price, an additional savings to the city. If I were to 
receive the review today from the cities attorney, the total process has been delayed and 
the very earliest the Code will be complete, would be April or May 2008 This would be 
almost a two year period with out being updated. 



November 20, 2007 
Legal Review of Codified Ordinances 

It would be my recommendation to ask the City Council to ask the City Attorney to 
return the Legal Review to the City Clerk, at what ever stage of completion and to refer 
the matter to Odelson & Sterk, if necessary, for a review of the Legal Review. The matter 
has been complicated do to the age of the review by AM LegaL The city has adopted over 
100 ordinances since the review was completed, all of which now have to be crossed 
referenced before Re-Codification process can take place. Please see attached memo from 
American Legal regarding same. 

2 



-" ~ ~ "," ,. 
of ;.;."~"'''''~ 

"'" ~ 1. , 

November 19, 2007 

Thomas 1 Pavlik, City Clerk 
City of Berwyn 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Dear Tom, 

AMERICAN LEGAL 

In follow-up to our discussions throughout the year, I wanted to reiterate the importance of the City 
proceeding with the recodification as soon as possible. 

The 23-page Legal and Editorial Research and Report ("the legal report") was mai led to the City nearly 
one year ago, on 12-1-06. Despite having received other materials for the recodification project, we 
cannot begin on any portion of the recodification until the legal report responses have been received 
from the City. 

With each passing month, not only does the code currently in use by the City become more out-of-date, 
but the legal report for the recodification also becomes more dated and less relevant In order to get the 
most valuable use of the legal report, we must receive the responses in a timely manner .. Additionally, 
the longer American Legal holds materials for a recodification, the more likely it is that the City will 
incur additional costs related to the codification project So, to ensure the best and most accurate final 
product and to contain costs of the project, we ask that the City provide the necessary materials as soon 
as possible. 

Please provide at your earliest convenience: 
• Responses to the legal report Please note that if questions remain unanswered on the report, the 

item will not be addressed in the recodification draft There will, of course, be a draft review 
process for the City, so the City will still have the opportunity to nole and correct any remaining 
items at that stage (or during a future supplement). 
Copies of any codifiable ordinances passed since 1-9·07. 

Thank you for all of the materials you have provided thus far. We very much look forward to receiving 
the final items necessary to proceed with this important recodification for the City of Berwyn. 

0Jl~~ 
Michele Girard 
Client Services Representative 

,~ " ... ". 
432 Walnut Street· 12th Floor· Cincinnati. Ohio45202 

wwwamlegal.com. e·mail: customer.;ervice@am!ega!com. fax: (5 13) 763.3562 
(!)OO) 4.J5-55HH 

• Co •• os,. _ .. " ..... "_ .. 



Section H 

Communications From The 

Zoning 

Board of Appeals 



Section I 

Reports and 
Communications From 

Aldermen, Committees, 
Boards and Commissions 



CITY OF BERWYN 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING November 27, 2007 

Deferred Communication 

Agenda Item t-'1 is a Deferred Communication from C C Meeting dated 11/ 13/07 Agenda item f/21 

From: Alderman Erickson 

Re: National Health Care Crisis 
--~~~~~~~~~~~~---------------

Templete -.xis 



October 5, 2007 

From 8th Ward Alderman Joel Erickson 

Regarding: National Health Care Crisis 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

ITEM NO. ;:; ,. 
DATE OCT 0 700~ __ , 

DISPOSITI0Cx1i?g ~ 

--------
ITEM NO. _.J?{'-
DATE.~CT ~ 32007 

--........ ,--~=.~ . __ .r::z= 

I have some information which, apparently, will be news to some of 
you regarding issues relating to Health Care Costs which I'd like to 
share with you this evening. 

Respectfully Yours, 

Joel Erickson 
8th Ward Alderman 



CITY OF BERWYN 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING November 27, 2007 

Deferred Communication 

Agenda Item 1.- 2. is a Deferred Communication from C C Meeting dated 11 / 13 / 07 Agenda item #23 

From: Alderman Chapman 

Re: 3500 Euclid Avenue-Porch Railings 

Templete -.xis 



6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Telephone: 

November 8, 2007 
Mayor Michael A. O'Connor 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 

SUBJECT: 3500 Eucild Ave. Porch Railings 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

NONA N. CIL\PMAN 
j;'irst Ward Aldt!J''1llan 

II~I: (iOI)) 4"4.Nona (6662) 
E-~l[lil: 1.stWHrdQ~'IBerwyn-IL Um 

It has come to my attention that a 1 st ward resident Terry McManmon, residing at 3500 Eucild Ave 
was denied his design plans for front porch railings. Enclosed is a photo of the home in 1893, which 
they intend to emulate in order to return this historic property to what it was in the late 1800's 

It would be my recomendation to allow the lower railing to preserve the historic flavor of the property .. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Nona N. Chapman 
1 st Ward Alderman 



o 
C 
N 
I o 
$: 
m 

~ 
..L 
m 
Z 
u 
C 
N o 
I 
» 
(f) 
m 
o 
» 
(f) 

» 
0> , 
.." 

~ 

-' 

o 
C 
N 
I o 
$: 
m 
z 

f,)lS\~~'O~~",:-

1 ~~p;r;1 ~_!J1 



October 12, 2007 

Alderman Chapman, 

As you know thcrc have bccn no porch railings on our house at 3500 Euclid for about 20 years, 
Back then we removed an enclosed porch and rebuilt the porch structure, roof supports, stairs and 
bcgan to replace the hand rails on the stairs. The design \\IC intended to use is attached 
Unfortunately the press of my career, and raising a child distracted us from completing the task, 
At that time we had a permit tor the work, a pemlit that shows no expiration date 

Now that I have more or less retired, there has been some time to devote to the stair and porch 
rails, but in the mean time the City of Berwyn has been sending letters regarding the lack ofrails 
Their notice of violations around our home is a long and twisted story, but not germaine to the rail 
iss\le cxcept their citations for other non-existent violations lead me to take their warnings lightly 

In August Liz and 1 met twice with Director LaBcaux in an effort to get him to accept our design 
for the rails, He informed us that unlike the zoning code, there was no appeal process for the 
building code" While he was polite and understanding of our desire to have rails compatible with 
the age and style of our bouse, and be was complimentary of our restoration efforts, he stood fiml 
on the rail beight issue and sent us back to our architect, Doug Walega, in search of a design that 
is both 36-inches high and in keeping with the age ofthe home, Unfortunately Mr. Walega's 
suggestions did not prove compatible, nor were we able to offer any suitable suggestions either. 

By then we were running out of time for the court hearing on the matter, so we reluctantly decided 
to give up and install mass-marketed plastic rails (no painting nor rot) from onc o[ the big-box 
home stores. I applied for a pcrmit to do that on Friday 10-5-07, Director LaBcaux was not able to 
sign the permit application by late Tuesday, 10-9, and our hearing was to be on 10-1 L 

At tbe suggestion of tbe person at the Neighborhood Affairs desk in City Hall, I called Mark 
Jarnagin on tbe afternoon of 1 0-9 and explained the situation to him I then found out that he is 
the hearing officer for the court He stated he would give me until the end of November to 
complete the work, and assured me the permit would be available to me by the end of this week 

Whi Ie 1 was out of town tor the next few days a person Jiom the building deparlment left a voice 
messagc on our macbine stating the pemlit was available, and to bring $310 along, This broke 
down as $250 + 30 + 30 they stated. I called you because I was shocked at the pemlit cost because 
$310 will be more tban the cost of materials for the job, if 1 were to install the mass-produced 

plastic rails. ./ t 

\4:1?':1 e j /[f(./i/'\~-
Terry McManmon I 
3500 Euclid v 

Berwyn,IL 
788-8830 



r 
& .-

o o 

~' 

c; 

r 

o 

L 
6 

~=n1 Ofl=1 :=;-1=-= --=-=r:=:nl On=1 == 

,- . 

316 

\ , 
-' 
I 

\'1].." 

'-
0" ~( 

\: I-~ 

I , c::-c 



o 

,-----
I 
I 
I 
I 

,-- -
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

-- ---l 



tIEA~ITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, MayoI' 

6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 
www berv .. 'yn~iJ gOY 

November 20, 2007 
Mayor Michael A, O'Connor 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 

SUB,JECT: Library Personnel Issue 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 

NONA N. CHAPMAN 
First Wanl Al{icf'l11<1.11 

llM: (708) 484 Nona (6662) 
E-\1ail: lstWard@Ben\~'n-IL UO\ 

I am aware of an employee issue that needs to be reviewed and discussed in the closed session This 
request is regarding Library personneL 

It would be my recommendation to discuss this issue in closed session and concur with the recommendation 
of the session. 

Nona N. Chapman 
1 st Ward Alderman 



Section J 

Staff Reports 



\ 

CITY OF BERWYN 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING November 27, 2007 

Deferred Communication 

Agenda Item J-3. is a Deferred Communication from C C Meeting dated 11 (13 (07 Agenda item # 3 0 

From: 

Re: 

City Attorney Bonebrake 

Set Public Hearing to amend Zoning o:rdinance placing Beauty Parlors 
and Nail Salons as Condit; oual llses in a] 1 commercial zoning' . 
districts. 

Tempiete -.x'\s 



THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS Building A NclV Bcntl!J" 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, MayOl-
6700 West 26th Street· Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 • Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 

:7t)"WW berwyn-il gOY 
ITEM NO _____ • 

To: Honorable Mayor Michael A. O'Connor 
Aldermen of the City Council 

From: Bruce Bonebrake, City Attorney 

J-2 DATE NDVI 3 7007 

Re: Set Public Hearing For Amendment to Zoning Ordinance Placing Beauty Parlors and 
Nail Salons as Conditional Uses in all conU11ercial zoning districts 

Date: November 9, 2007 

The attached Ordinance amends the Zoning Ordinance to place beauty shops and nail 
salons as Conditional uses within the commercial zoning districts. The Law Department 
respectfully recommends that the Council set a hearing date for notice and publication as 
required by Ordinance and Illinois Law. The recommended hearing date is Tuesday, December 
4,2007 at 6:00 pm in the Council Chambers. 

Sincerely, 

Bruce A. Bonebrake 
City Attomey 



ORDINANCE NO. __ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PART TWELVE, TITLE FOUR OF 
THE BERWYN CODIFIED ORDINANCES TO REQUIRE BEAUTY 

PARLOR AND NAIL SALONS TO BE DESIGNATED AS 
CONDITIONAL USES WITHIN THE CITY OF BERWYN, COOK 

COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have determined that the proposed 

amendments to the City's Zoning Code to classify beauty parlor and nail salon shops to 

conditional uses within the C-l and C-2 Zoning Districts will further the public health, safety, 

and welfare of the Berwyn community; and, 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on ______ , pursuant to lawful notice 

and publication and all parties attending were provided an opportunity to be heard. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council ofthe City 

of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, in the exercise of Berwyn's home rule powers as follows: 

SECTION 1: Recitals. The preliminary paragraphs set forth above are incorporated 

herein as part of this ordinance. 

SECTION 2: Chapter 1256 of Title Four, Part Twelve ofthe Codified Ordinances is 

hereby amended by eliminating beauty shops as permitted uses within all C-I General 

Commercial Districts so that Section 1256.01(h) shall read as follows: 

(h) Art and school supply stores; art galleries; banks and financial institutions; 
barber shops; beauty shops; book or stationery stores; camera and 
photographic supply stores; carpet, rug and linoleum stores; china and 
glassware stores; clothes pressing establishments; coin and philatelic stores; 
curTency exchanges; custom dressmaking and millinery shops; department 
stores; drug stores; dry cleaning and laundry receiving stations; dry goods 
or notions stores; electrical and household appliance stores, including radio 
and television sales; florist shops and conservatories; food stores, including 
grocery stores, meat markets, bakeries, candy and ice cream shops, 

-1-



delicatessens and frozen food stores, and including locker rental in 
conjunction therewith; furrier shops, including the incidental storage and 
conditioning of furs; furniture stores, including upholstering when 
conducted as part of the retail operations and secondary to the principal use; 
garden supply and seed stores; gift shops; haberdasheries; hardware stores; 
hobby shops for retail sale of items to be assembled or used away from the 
premises; interior decorating shops, including upholstering and the making 
of drapelies, slip covers and other similar articles, when conducted as part 
of the retail operation and secondary to the principal use; jewelry stores, 
including watch repair; laundries, whether automatic, self-service or hand, 
employing not more than four persons, full-time and part-time, in addition 
to one owner and manager, provided that the person given the authority to 
issue permits by the City shall, in his or her sole discretion, decide if the 
capacity of laundry machines and the number to be installed of each is 
generally in confomlity with what is required and acceptable in such a 
business and that the weight of all installed laundry machines shall be 
within the safety standards for floor load capacity; leather goods and 
luggage stores; liquor stores (package goods only); loan offices; locksmith 
shops; medical offices; musical instrument stores, including minor 
instrument repair; office supply stores; offices, both business and 
professional; optician shops; paint and wallpaper stores; photographers; 
radio and television broadcasting stations; restaurants, (excluding drive-ins 
or curb service, dancing or entertainment); schools of music, dance or 
business; sewing machine stores (household machines only); shoe and hat 
repair stores; shoe stores; sporting goods stores; tailor shops; telegraph 
offices; temporary buildings for construction purposes, for a period not to 
exceed the duration of such construction; tobacco shops; toy shops; variety 
stores; and wearing apparel shops. 

SECTION 3: Chapter 1256.03 of Title Four, Part Twelve of the Codified Ordinances is 

hereby amended by adding beauty shops and nail salons to the listing of conditional uses within 

all C-2 General Commercial Districts so that Section 1256.02(dd) is added to read as follows: 

(dd) Beauty shops and nail salons 

SECTION 4: Chapter 1258 of Title Four, Part Twelve of the Codified Ordinances is 

hereby amended by eliminating beauty shops as permitted uses within all C-3 General Service 

Districts so that Section 1258.01(g) shall read as follows: 

(g) Art and school supply stores; art galleries; banks and financial institutions; 
barber shops; beauty shops; book or stationery stores; camera and 

-2-



photographic supply stores; carpet, rug and linoleum stores; china and 
glassware stores; clothes pressing establishments; coin and philatelic stores; 
currency exchanges; custom dressmaking and millinery shops; department 
stores; drug stores; dry goods or notions stores; electrical and household 
appliance stores, including radio and television sales; florist shops and 
conservatories; food stores, including grocery stores, meat markets, 
bakeries, candy and ice cream shops, delicatessens and frozen food stores, 
and including locker rental in conjunction therewith; furrier shops, 
including the incidental storage and conditioning of furs; furniture stores, 
including upholstering when conducted as part of the retail operations and 
secondary to the principal use; garden supply and seed stores; gift shops; 
haberdasheries; hardware stores; hobby shops, for retail sale of items to be 
assembled or used away from the premises; interior decorating shops, 
including upholstering and the making of draperies, slip covers and other 
similar articles, when conducted as part of the retail operation and 
secondary to the principal use; jewelry stores, including watch repair; 
laundries, whether automatic, self-seJ'vice or hand, employing not more than 
four persons, full-time and part-time, in addition to one owner and manager, 
provided that the person given the authority to issue permits by the City 
shall, in his or her sole discretion, decide if the capacity of laundry 
machines and the number to be installed of each is generally in conformity 
with what is required and acceptable in such a business and that the weight 
of all installed laundry machines shaH be within the safety standards for 
floor load capacity; leather goods and luggage stores; liquor stores (package 
goods only); loan offices; locksmith shops; musical instrument stores, 
including minor instrument repair; office supply stores; business and 
professional offices; optician shops; paint and wallpaper stores; radio and 
television broadcasting stations; restaurants, (excluding dancing or 
entertainment); schools of music or dance; sewing machine stores 
(household machines only); shoe and hat repair stores; shoe stores; sporting 
goods stores; tailor shops; telegraph offices; temporary huildings for 
construction purposes, for a period not to exceed the duration of such 
construction; tobacco shops; toy shops; variety stores; and wearing apparel 
shops 

SECTION 5: Chapter 1258 of Title Four, Part Twelve of the Codified Ordinances is 

herehy amended by adding beauty shops and nail salons to the listing of conditional uses within 

all C-2 GeneIaI Service Districts so that Section 1258.02(bb) is added to read as follows: 

(bb) Beauty Shops and Nail Salons 

-3-



SECTION 6: Chapter 1260 of Title Four, Part Twelve of the Codified Ordinances is 

hereby amended by eliminating beauty shops as permitted uses within all C-3 General Service 

Districts so that Section 1260.01(g) shall read as follows: 

(g) Art and school supply stores; art galleries; banks and financial institutions; barber 
shops; beauty shops; book or stationery stores; camera and photographic supply stores; 
carpet, rug and linoleum stores; china and glassware stores; clothes pressing 
establishments; coin and philatelic stores; currency exchanges; custom dressmaking and 
millinery shops; department stores; drug stores; dry goods or notions stores; electrical 
and household appliance stores, including radio and television sales; florist shops and 
conservatories; food stores, including grocery stores, meat markets, bakeries, candy and 
ice cream shops, delicatessens and frozen food stores, and including locker rental in 
conjunction therewith; fulTier shops, including the incidental storage and conditioning of 
furs; furniture stores, including upholstering when conducted as part of the retail 
operations and secondary to the principal use; garden supply and seed stores, as well as 
wholesale seed stores; gift shops; haberdasheries; hardware stores; hobby shops, for retail 
sale of items to be assembled or used away from the premises; interior decorating shops, 
including upholstering and the rnaking of draperies, slip covers and other similar articles, 
when conducted as part ofthe retail operation and secondary to the principal use; jewelry 
stores, including watch repair; laundries, Whether automatic, self-service or hand, 
employing not more than four persons, full-time and part-time, in addition to one owner 
and manager, provided that the person given the authority to issue permits by the City 
shall, in his or her sole discretion, decide if the capacity oflaundry machines and the 
number to be installed of each is generally in conforn1ity with what is required and 
acceptable in such a business and that the weight of all installed laundry machines shall 
be within the safety standards for floor load capacity; leather goods and luggage stores; 
liquor stores (package goods only); loan offices; locksmith shops; musical instrument 
stores, including minor instrument repair; office supply stores; business and professional 
offices; optician shops; paint and wallpaper stores; radio and television broadcasting 
stations; restaurants (excluding dancing or entertainment); schools of music or dance; 
sewing machine stores (household machines only); shoe and hat repair stores; shoe 
stores; sporting goods stores; tailor shops; telegraph offices; temporary buildings for 
construction purposes, for a period not to exceed the duration of such construction; 
tobacco shops; toy shops; variety stores; and wearing apparel shops; 

SECTION 7: Chapter 1260 of Title Four, Part Twelve of the Codified Ordinances is 

hereby amended by adding beauty shops and nail salons to the listing of conditional uses within 

all C-2 General Service Districts so that Section 1260.02(z) is added to read as follows: 

(z) Beauty Shops and Nail Salons 

-4-



If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance shall be 

held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect any of the other provisions ofthis ordinance. 

SECTION 8: All ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of 

such conflict 

SECTION 9: This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval 

and publication as provided by law. 

ADOPTED this ~ __ day of ____ 2007, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

YES NO I ABSENT I PRESENT I 

Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Slayd 

Phelan 

Lovero 

I Erickson I I I I I 
I O'Coo"" 

(Mayor) 

I I I I I 
I TOTAL I I I I I 

-5-



APPROVED by the Mayor on _______ , 2007. 

Michael A. O'Connor, Mayor 

Thomas 1. Pavlik, City Clerk 

-6-



'" ;""T~nvCITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS Bw1ding A New Bmwyn 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 • Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788·2567 

wWI"berwyn-ilgov 

To: City Council and Mayor Michael O'Connor 

From: Stephanie Walker 

Date: November 19, 2007 

Re: 2006 Andit 

Please approval the 2006 audited financial statements as distributed at the last Council meeting 
and presented in tonight's Committee of the Whole. Also please direct the clerk to file them with 
the County. 

Thank you. 



"''LTTI1.r>-.'''''' OF BERWYN ILLINOIS Building A New Berwyn 

MICHAEL A_ O'CONNOR, Mayor 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Thlephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 

WWI'{.berwyn-il .gov 

To: City Council and Mayor Michael O'Connor 

From: Stephanie Walker 

Date: November 6, 2007 

Re: Public Hearing for the 2008 Tax Levy 

Attached is a copy of the Notice filed for public hearing for the 2008 tax levy to be held on 
December 11, 2007 per our discussion in COW_ 

In researching the state statutes it canle to my attention that we are not to have the public hearing 
for the budget on the sanle night. Please let me know when you would like to schedule the public 
hearing for the budget so we can get the legal notice posted for that event. 

The 2007 proposed levy includes an estimate for the library_ However I do not have any final 
aJll0Wlts from them at this time_ 

As always, please let me know if you have any questions or comments_ 



NOTICE OF PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX LEVY 
FOR CITY OF BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

L A public hearing to approve a proposed propeliy tax levy increase for 
City of Berwyn, Illinois for 2007 will be held on December II, 2007 
at 6:00 p.m. at the City Hall Council Chambers located at 6700 West 
26th Street, Berwyn, Illinois 60402. Any person desiring to appear at 
the public hearing and present testimony to the City of Berwyn, may 
contact Mr. Thomas 1 Pavlik, City Clerk, 6700 West 26th Street, 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402. Tel: (708) 788-2660. 

II. The corporate, library and special purpose property taxes extended or 
abated for the year 2006 were $8,523,442. The proposed corporate 
and special purpose propeliy taxes to be levied for 2007 are 
$13,244,555, This represents a 55% increase over the previous year. 

III. The propeliy taxes extended or abated for debt service and public 
building commission leases for 2006 were $10,232,727. The 
estimated property taxes to be levied for debt service and public 
building commission leases for 2007 are $6,449,422. This represents a 
37% decrease over the previous year. 

IV. The total property taxes extended or abated for 2006 were 
$18,756,169. The estimated property taxes to be levied for 2007 are 
$\9,693,977. This represents a 5% increase over the previous year. 

City of Berwyn 
Michael A. O'Connor, Mayor 
Thomas 1. Pavlik, City Clerk 



mlTb fIIIiF BERWYN, ILLINOIS Building A New BelWlJIt 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 
bra_'est 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • Thlephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 

www'.berwyn-il.gov 

To: City Council and Mayor Michael O'Connor 

From: Stephanie Walker 

Date: November 20, 2007 

Re: Parking Ordinances - review categories 

As you may be aware the charges for annual parking permits will be due soon. As part of the 
budget and review process Debi Suchy and I reviewed the current ordinances in place in the 
City. Below I have detailed the current areas of parking and the fee charged, broken down by 
those areas addressed in the current ordinances and those that are not currently addressed 

Addressed by Ordinances (attached): 
L Commuter (non-reserved spaces along the railroad tracks) - $75 per quarter or $250 per 

year. 
2, Vacin Fairway parking (non-reserved) - $75 per year. 

Not addressed by Ordinances: 
L 32"d street off Oak Park Ave (reserved spaces) - $125 per year (7 spaces) 
2. Stanley off Oak Park Ave (reserved spaces) - $125 per year (2 spaces) 
3.. Kenilworth off Windsor (unreserved spaces) - $125 per year (9 spaces) 
4. Grove Municipal Lot (reserved spaces) - $300 per year 

I recommend we revise the ordinances to properly reflect the categories of parking the City has 
in place. My recommendation would be to have the ordinances reflect 5 categories of parking: 

L Grove Municipal Lot parking (reserved parking in lot) 
2, Commuter unreserved parking (spaces alon~ tracks) 
3, Business reserved parking (Stanley and 32" street parking - existing spaces only) 
4. Business unreserved parking (Kenilworth off Windsor and other non-designated Depot 

area parking spaces) 
5. Vacin Fairway parking 

Please approve this recommendation to begin effective January 1,2008 so the Collector's office 
can begin the current year's sales of permits. Further please forward to legal for updating of the 
ordinance. 



Berwyn, Illinois Code of Ordinances 
484.03 MUNICIPAL AND COMMUTER PERMITS. 

(a) Council shall establish certain parking spaces in the South Zone as 

permit parking only spaces, such spaces to be designated by signs indicating 

"Municipal Permit Parking Only" or "Commuter Permit Parking Only." 

(b) Municipal and commuter permits to park in such spaces are available 

upon application to the City Collector on a form to be provided for this purpose, 

which application shall include the name, address and telephone number of the 

applicant 

The fee for such a permit is seventy-five dollars ($75.00) per quarter or two 

hundred fifty dollars ($250.00) per year, and the number of permits shall be 

limited by Council. The Collector may prorate the yearly or quarterly fee on a 

weekly or monthly basis. Such permit shall not be issued or renewed until the 

required fee is paid, and is not transferable, 

In the event of the loss of such permit, the fee for replacement shall be one

half of the cost of the original permit, and an application for such replacement 

shall be made to the Collector. 

(c) Municipal and commuter parking permits shall be in decal form and in 

colors designated by the City Collector, shall be numbered and shall state the 

date of issuance and date of expiration" Such permits shall be affixed to the 

windshields of vehicles where they may be visible from the exterior of the 

vehicles. 

(d) No vehicle which does not bear a Municipal parking permit or a 

commuter parking permit shall park in those spaces designated as "Municipal 

Permit Parking Only" or "Commuter Permit Parking Only." All such spaces shall 

be designated as tow zones. (Adopting Ordinance; Ord. 97-28. Passed 6-10-97; 

Ord" 02-35" Passed 12-23-02) 

1 



Berwyn, Illinois Code of Ordinances 
484.07 EMIL VACIN FAIRWAY PARKING 

PERMITS; VIOLATIONS. 

(a) Permits to park in spaces designated on the Emil Vacin Fairway are 

available upon application to the Police Department, Parking Division, on a form 

to be provided for that purpose. Said form shall include the name, address, 

home and work phone numbers of the applicant and the license plate number, 

make and color of the vehicle to which the permit will apply. 

(b) Permits are available on a yearly basis, from January 1 to December 31 

of a given year. 

(c) The fee for said permit is seventy-five dollars ($75.00) per year, to be 

prorated if purchased after March 1 of a given year. 

(d) No permit shall be issued to a vehicle with outstanding City parking 

tickets. 

(e) Permits are not transferable. 

(f) In the event of a sale of a vehicle, or in the situation where an employer 

has paid for said permit and the employee leaves his or her employ, the permit 

may be turned in and another issued for a new vehicle at a five dollar ($5.00) 

fee. If the permit is not turned in, the full fee will be charged. 

(g) Permits are to be displayed in the rear window of a vehicle, upper right 

hand corner. 

(h) Temporary permits may be issued with the approval of the 

Superintendent of Police for a period of no more than seven days. A seventy-five 

dollar ($75.00) deposit will be due upon issuance of said permit, which deposit 

shall be returned when the permit is turned in. 

(i) No person shall park in those spaces designated as "Municipal Permit 

Parking Only" along the Emil Vacin Fairway without a permit therefor. 

0) No person shall use a parking permit in the Emil Vacin Fairway by 

placing such parking permit on a vehicle for which such permit was not issued or 

properly transferred. No person shall duplicate or attempt to duplicate such 

1 



parking permit, or drive or otherwise operate a vehicle on which is displayed a 

parking permit not specifically issued for such vehicle or a duplicated parking 

permit. 

(Ord.95-43. Passed 12-12-95 .. ) 

V ACIN FAIRWAY P ARKING REGULATIONS AS POSTED 

3 HR. Parking 
9:00 AM - 9:00 PM 
Monday - Friday 
9:00 AM -7:00 PM 
Saturday 

\ I. tI-
I 

No Parking - Street Cleaning 
South Side - Tuesday 
North Side - Wednesday 
2:00 AM - 5:00 AM 

No Parking - Snow Emergency 
South Side - Even Dates 
North Side - Odd Dates 
2:00 AM - 5:00 AM 

TOW ZONE 

2 



...,n·" ,""ibnT OF BE.RWYN, ILLINOIS Building A New Berwyn 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 • 'Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax: (708) 788-2567 

wwwberwyn-il.gov 

To: City Council and Mayor Michael O'Connor 

From: Stephanie Walker 

Date: November 20, 2007 

Re: Parking Ordinances - review fees 

In addition to my previous recommendation to update the description of the parking ordinances I 
also believe the City should review the fees charged for each parking category as the current fees 
charged have not been updated in many years. 

In developing new rates for parking I began by reviewing the charge for commuter unreserved 
parking. Currently we charge $75 per quarter or $250 per year for this category of parking. 
Attached is a survey of how much other communities charge for this type of parking .. As you can 
see from that survey, the average amount charged by other communities is just over $330 per 
year .. I would recommend we change our commuter unreserved parking to be $90 per quarter 
(which would be $360 per year) and continue to give a break to those purchasing the annual 
permit by charging $330 per year for unreserved commuter parking. This increase is very close 
to what the fee would be had the City annually reviewed and increased the fee 3 % each year 
from 2003. 

The fees for the other categories of parking should then be set in relation to this fee. For example 
unreserved parking should cost less than reserved parking and business parking should cost less 
than commuter parking. With those rules in mind I would recommend that business parking be Y2 
of commuter parking and be limited to 2 permits per business. This structure would yield the 
fo !lowing fees: 

I. Grove Municipal Lot parking - $375 per year (should be more than commuter unreserved 
paying $90/quarter) 

2. Commuter unreserved parking· $90 per quarter or $330 per year 
3. Business reserved parking· $187 per year (1/2 of commuter reserved) 
4. Business unreserved parking· $165 per year (112 of commuter unreserved) 
5. Vacin Fairway parking· $100 per year 

Please concur with this recommendation to begin effective January 1, 2008 so the Collector's 
office can begin the current year's sales of permits. Further please forward to legal for updating 
of the ordinance. 



City of Berwyn 
Summary of Commuter Parking Fees in Surrounding Municipalities 

Munici~ali~ Commuter ~arking Annual 

1 Elmhurst $20/month, $50/quarter $200/year 200 
2 Lemont $50/quarter 200 
3 Naperville $50 - $65/quarter 200 
4 Schuamburg $20/month, $200/year 200 
5 Winnetka $10016 months 200 
6 Hanover Park $20/month 240 
7 Lockport $60/quarter 240 
B River Forest $20 - $35/month 240 
9 West Chicago $60/quarter 240 

10 Berwyn $75/quarter or $250/year 250 
11 Glen Ellyn $70 - $B5/month, $2BO - $340/year 2BO 
12 Bartlett $75/quarter 300 
13 [les Plaines $25/month 300 
14 Downers Grover Residents $75-BO/quarter 300 
15 Glenview $150/6 months 300 
16 Lisle $25/month 300 
17 Lombard $75 - $150 I quarter 300 
1 B Riverside $75/quarter 300 
19 Vernon Hills $25/month 300 
20 Western Springs $ 150/6months 300 
21 Westmont $75/quarter 300 
22 Villa Park $B2.50/quarter 330 
23 Arlington Heights $30/month 360 
24 Brookfield $30/month 360 
25 BUffalo Grove $30/month 360 
26 La Grange $20-40 per month depending on lot 360 
27 Palatine $30 - $40 Imonth 360 
2B Waukegan $30/month 360 
29 Wheeling $30/month 360 
30 Winfield $90/quarter 360 
31 Oak Park $135/quarter 540 
32 Hinsdale $2BO semi annually residents 560 
33 Chicago $50/month 600 
34 Clarendon Hills $90/month resident lOBO 

Average $ 33B 

Notes: When multiple rates were given (such as in La Grange $20 - $40 per month) the annual 
column was calculated using the lowest amount in the range. Additionally if a break was given for 
purchasing on a year's pass compared to purchasing monthly or quarterly that break was given 
in the annual cost column. 



November 20, 2007 

OF BERWYN 1 ILLINOIS Bzn1ding A NelV Berwyn 

City Collectm' MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 
26th Street. Berwyn. Illinois 60402-0701 • Telephone, (70B) 7B8-2660. Fax, (708) 749-8910 

wwwherwyn~i1 gov 

Honorable Mayor Michael A, O'COlmor 
And Members of the City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Re: Waive Retail Overlay Restriction 

Dear Mayor and Council Members: 

Two separate property owners have requested the cooperation of the City Council in 
waiving the retail overlay restriction governing the renting of propeliy on Cennak Road. 
The owner of 6920 West Cermak Road is attempting to rent his storefront to someone 
willing to open a photography studio, as well as, a scrapbook store and the owner of 6440 
West Cermak Road would like to rent his storefront to someone operating a retail 
marketing company_ These requests for a business licenses have been denied due to the 
retail overlay ordinance restriction. 

With the growing number of vacancies on Celmak Road coupled with the current state of 
the economy, I ask you to reconsider the process in which those businesses must apply 
for a variance, This could allow the licensing process to be expedited.. A recent survey 
of Cennak Road and the adjacent blocks indicate there are at least 44 empty storefronts at 
the current time. 

I ask yoU!' consideration to refer this matter to Committee of the Whole for further 
discussion and possibly making changes in the current procedures, 

Respectfully, 

JA., II J1cd(f 
Debi B, Suchy 
City Collector 



'\'>\ BERWYN 
o FIRE DEPARTMENT 

6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 

Phone (708) 788-2660 ext 277 
Fax (708) 788-3039 Emergency 9-1-1 

Date: November 16, 2007 
To: Mayor Michael O'Connor and Members of City Council 
From: Chief Richard J. Kalivoda c:y K 
Subject: RFP for Fire Engine 

The fire department has identified in its 2008 budget a need for a new fire 
engine. The new engine would replace a 1982 Seagrave vehicle now in service. 
If purchased the new vehicle would be located at the 16th St Fire Station. 

We request, your consent, to develop an RFP that would accurately represent 
the costs of this project The project costs would then be forwarded for 
examination by city council. It is our desire to present factual and accurate 
information with regards to the New Fire Engine project 

We are alwi?Ys open any and all questions Feel free to contact the Fire Chief or 
the Deputy Chiefs with your inquiries. 



t\/ ~ BERWYN 
-.J FIRE DEPARTMENT 

6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 

Phone (70B) 7BB-2660 ext 277 
Fax (70B) 78B-3039 Emergency 9-1-1 

Date: November 16,2007 
To: Mayor Michael A O'Connor and Members of City Council 
From: Chief Richard J. Kalivoda Vf/K 
Subject: RFP Ambulance Vehicles 

In the budget request for 2008 a need was identified for the lease purchase of 
ambulance vehicles, We are recommending the twin 2002 ambulances be 
replaced. 

The fire department would like to exploit the current high trade in value for these 
vehicles at their five year age mark. 

We are seeking council approval to begin the RFP process. We shall provide 
documentation relating to the cost of replacing two ambulance vehicles, All 
project cost information would be forwarded to city council for review and project 
approval. It is our desire to provide factual and accurate information relative to 
this project 

Please contact the Fire Chief or the Deputy Fire Chiefs with any questions 
relative to this project. 



/q 
k...-rr..,,, OF BERWYN ILLINOIS BuildingANewBenuyn 

MICHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 
6700 West.26th Street. Berwyn., Dli:i1ois 60402-0701 • Telephone; (708) 788-2660 • Fax; (708) 788·2567 

www;berwyn-i1.gov 

November 21,2007 

Re: Elevator Safety Program 

Dear Mayor and Council members, 

The State of lllinois recently passed legislation pertaining to elevators. The new law mandates 
that local municipalities create an official "Local Elevator Inspection Program" otherwise the 
Office of the State Fire Marshal (OSFM) will take over control of all permit reviews and 
inspections effectively keeping the building department out of the loop and possibly delaying 
occupancy. 

I have submitted the required paperwork to the OSFM to create our local safety program. One of 
the requirements is to officially adopt by ordinance, within 30 days, the following standards 
regarding elevators: 
(Note: These standards are required to be followed regardless of creating a local program.) 

Safety Code for Elevators and Escalators (ASME AI7.1-2005), A17.! (a) -2005, and A17.1 (s)-2005; 
Guide for Inspection of Elevators, Escalators, and Moving Walks (ASME 17.2-2004); 
Safety Code for Existing Elevators and Escalators (ASME AI73-2005); 
Safety Standard forPlatfonn Lifts and Stairway Chairlifts (ASME AI8.2-2005); 
Standard for the Qualification of Elevator Inspectors (ASME QUE-I-2004); 
Safety Requirements for Personal Hoists and Employee Elevators (ANSI AI0A-2004); and 
Automated People Mover Standards (ASCE 21-2000) 

Please adopt these standards regarding elevator safety. 

Building Director 

Attachments 



THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS Building A New BerwYll 

MlCHAEL A. O'CONNOR, Mayor 
6700 West 26th Street. Berwyn, nlinojs 60402-0701 • Telephone: (708) 788-2660 • Fax; (708) 788-2567 

www.berwyn-il.gov 

November 19, 2007 

Robert Capuaru 
Director of Elevator Safety Division 
Office of State Fire Marshal 
James R. Thompson Center 
100 West Randolph Street 
Chicago, illinois 60601 

Re: Elevator Safety Program for the City of Berwyn, IL 

Dear Mr. Capuaru: 

Attached is the executed agreement. The following is the information requested: 

Name and contact information of the Program administrator: 
Daniel .T. LeBeau 
Building Director 
City of Berwyn 
6700 w. 26th Street 
Berwyn, 1L 60402 
Phone: 708-788-2660 x 220 Fax: 708-788-1427 

The name and contact information of any third party inspection company under contract with the 
Local Authority: 

Thompson Elevator Inspection Service, Inc. 
1.302 E. Thayer Street 
Mount Prospect, 1L 60056 
Phone: 847-296-8211 Fax: 847-296-5424 

The number and type of conveyances covered by the Program: 
Hyd-Elev: 52, Trac-Elev: 16, DW: 4, Escalator: 0, WCLNPL: 4, Sidewalk!People Mover: 0, 
Other: 2 
Total Uruts: 79 

The number and type of conveyances not covered by the Program: 0 

If you have any question concerns, please contact me. 

Building Director 



ILLINOIS ELEVATOR SAFETY PROGRAM AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made between the Office of the State Fire Marshal ('OSFM") and the 
municipality or county ("Local Authority") as hereinafter identified. 

This Agreement constitutes a contract between the OSFM and Local Authority which 
permits the Local Authority to operate an a Elevator Safety Program ("Program") in 
conformity with Section 140 of the Elevator Safety Act (225 ILCS 3121140) and the 
Administrative 'Rules adopted at 41 III. Adm. Code 1000. In that regard, the Local 
Authority agrees to the following: 

1. This Agreement will become effective on the date it is accepted by the OSFM. 

2" The Local Authority shall submit to the OSFM, along with this Agreement 
executed by an officer of the Local Authority, the follOwing information and shall 
notify the OSFM in writing of any changes to subsections "A' and "S" thereafter 
during the term of this Agreement: 

A The name and contact information of its Program administrator. 

B. The name and contact information of any third party inspection company 
under contract with the Local Authority or the name and license number 
of the inspector(s) employed by the Local Authority to perform such 
inspections. 

C" The number and type of conveyances covered by the Program. 

D. The number and type of conveyances NOT covered by the Program, if 
any .. 

3. The Local Authority by signing this Agreement attests to the OSFM that it has 
adopted by ordinance or resolution, or will do so within 30 days of the date of its 
signature hereto, the following Standards: 

A. American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME): 

1) Safety Code for Elevators and Escalators (ASME A17.1-2005), 
A17, 1 (a)-2005, and A17.1(s)-2005; 

2) Guide for Inspection of Elevators, Escalators, and Moving Walks 
(ASME17.2-2004); 

3) Safety Code for Existing Elevators and Escalators (ASME A 173-
2005); 

4) Safety Standard for Platform Lifts and Stairway Chairlifts (ASME 
A18:1·2005); and 

5) Standard for the Qualification of Elevator Inspectors (ASME QEI-
1~2004). 



B. American National Standards: 

1) Safety Requirements for Personal Hoists and Employee Elevators 
(ANSI A10.4--2004). 

C. American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE): 

1) Automated People Mover Standards (ASCE 21-2000). 

4. Should the local Authority desire to amend any of the Standards, the Local 
Authority must submit to the OSFM, for approval by the Illinois Elevator Safety 
Board ("Board'"), a copy of the amendment and its reason for the change. The 
Board shall review the amendment and notify the Local Authority no later than 30 
days after the Board meeting at which the variance request is heard of its 
approval or denial. 

S. With respect to ASME A17.3-200S, Safety Code for Existing Elevators and 
Escalators, upgrades required by this Standard must be completed no later than 
January 1, 2009 except that upgrades to the hydraulic cylinder system and 
firefighter control system must be completed by January 1, 2011. 

An Existing Elevator is an elevator contained in a building for which a building 
permit was issued prior to the effective date of the Administrative Rules or a 
conveyance for which a permit was issued for that conveyance prior to the 
effective date of the Administrative Rules adopted in conformance with the 
Elevator Safety Act 

6. The Local Authority by signing this Agreement agrees: 

A. To operate its Program in compliance with the Elevator Safety Act and 
Administrative Rules. 

B. To ensure that all inspections and maintenance is performed by 
personnel properly licensed by the State and notify the OSFM of any 
instances of non-compliance it becomes aware of. 

C. To amend its Program within 30 days of receipt of notice from the OSFM 
informing them of changes to any form, document, the Standards and/or 
rules that affect the Program. 

D. To provide to the OSFM by February 1Sth of each year, an annual report 
of the previous calendar year that shall identify: 

1) The number and types of Inspections performed during the past 
year, 

2) The number of certificate of operations issued during the past 
year, 

3) The number of permits issued for neW conveyances during the 
past year, 



4) A list of conveyances identified by address and State LD. number 
after conveyance is registered, that were red-tagged or put out-of
service during the past year; 

5) A copy of any report prepared as the result of an elevator accident 
that was not reported to the State; and 

6) A copy of any amendments to the Program's enabling ordinance 
or resolution adopted by the local Authority. 

E To submit to the OSFM beginning February 15, 200B and thereafter on 
the 15th of each month, the list of conveyances inspected for the previous 
month identified by the State I.D. 

F. To maintain for a period of not less than one year, the following records 
for inspection by the OSFM: 

1) Copies of all inspection reports; 

2) Copies of all permits applications; 

3) Copies of all permits issued; and 

4) Records of the number of Certificates of Operation issued. 

G. To submit to the OSFM a copy of each permit issued. 

H.. To notify the OSFM at least 90 days in advance of the date the local 
Authority elects to discontinue its Program. 

L To require all conveyances in its jurisdiction to register and pay the 
associated fee to the OSFM and to put out-of-service and report to the 
OSFM the names of the owners of those conveyances that fail to register 
within 30 days of determination that the conveyance is not registered. 

7. In accordance with the Elevator Safety Act and the Administrative Rules, with the 
exception of the registration fees, the fees and procedures for applications, 
permits, inspection and enforcement under the local Authority's Program shall 
remain the jurisdiction of the local Authority and such procedures shall take 
precedence over the procedures adopted by the OSFM and Board. 

B. Should the Board determine that the Program does not meet the requirements of 
the Elevator Safety Act or the Administrative Rules, the Board shall notify the 
local Authority of the corrective actions needed to bring the Program into 
compliance. Should the local Authority fail to make the corrections, the Board 
may, after allowing time for corrective action and after a hearing under Section 
160 of the Administrative Rules, withdraw approval of the Program. 



9, A copy of the Administrative Rules (41 III. Admin. Code 1000) will be 
available at .. http://www.ilga.gov/commissionljcar/admincode/titles.html· 
once published. 

Cdl~ DF f,tA<.WYN 
Loom:~~k <1Z-~ c Signature 0 0 Icer 

[4wu .J. U!?£4U 
Printed Name 

Title 

id 10" w. z.& +-h t;11ZuL 
Address 

City/StatelZip 

IfJ f> -1 ~ 9.? - Z-ftJr82 )( t- 2.P 
Telephone Number 

Date 

Office of the State Fire Marshal 
1035 Stevenson Drive 
Springfield, IL 62703 
(217) 785-0969 

Accepted by: 

David B. Foreman, Fire Marshal 

Date 



Mayor Michael A. O'Connor 
City of Ber.yyn 
6700 W. 261h St. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

November 21, 2007 

Rc: Metra Platform Lease, 2006-2031 

Dear Mayor: 

3318 WEST 9STH STREET 
EVEHGltEEN PARK IL 60805 
(708) '124·S678 
FAX (708) 42S .. 1898 
W\VW ooch;onslCril,com 

Attached find BNSF's proposed Station Agreement between the City of Berwyn and BNSF 
Railway Corporation ("Lease"), and an ordinance adopting it The Lease calls for the City to 
lease the land relating to Berwyn's three (3) Metra train stations - Harlem Ave., Berwyn, and 
LaVergne .. The Lease, if executed, will run retroactively from May 1,2006 through April 30, 
2031. 

As you of course know, the City has been negotiating with BNSF for some time over the Lease .. 
The major issues have been the City's commercial use ofthe stations, the issue ofBNSF's 
indemnity of the City, and contmctor insurance. A summary of the attached Lease as to these 
key issues is as follows: 

• Section 3: Gives BNSF authority to approve commercial uses and has set forth 
restrictions on the types of uses there can be. 

• Section 3: All monies generated from commercial are to be lIsed for "Leased Premises 
Costs," i.e. maintenance of the facility. 

• Section 8: BNSF's obligation to indenmify the City for liability over $1 million and 
indemnify the City for deaths sustained by BNSF employees 011 the premises, persons 
who are struck, killed or injured as a result of train operation, or persons who are injured 
due to the design, construction or alteration of the facility (as existed in the prior Lease) 
have been eliminated. According to BNSF, it is no longer indemnifying municipalities 
under station leases. BNSF cited Lisle and Brookfield as exanlples. 



• Section 9(C): As you know, we are litigating two cases relating to the Harlem Ave. 
platform (Strand and Talmage). The injuries occurred prior to the expiration of the 
earlier Lease. The draft that BNSF submitted had confusing language on this score tilat 
could cause issues regarding BNSF's duty to indemnify the City in iliose cases The 
attached draft has our proposed language, and this is under review by BNSF. Tllis may 
change prior to tile Cowlcil meeting. If so, we will bring a revised draft to ilie meeting. 

• Section 11: BNSF claims it is unable to provide the City with contractor insurance 
because tllis is impractical given the way tiley do business, BNSF said. The City, 
however, \vill have to seek to have ilieir contractors indemnify BNSF, including those 
doing routine maintenance. 

• Section 13: BNSF will not agree to appoint competent engineers to supervise all 
contractor activity on the leased premise but tile City must do so. 

If you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me. 

Very truly yOtlfS, 

~vu\~ 
Richard F. Bruen, .II. 

RFBlrs 

Enclosures 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER-

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A STATION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BERWYN AND BNSF RAILWAY 

COMPANY IN THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
BERWYN, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

Michael A. O'Connor, Mayor 
Thomas J. Pavlik, City Clerk 

Nona Chapman 
Jim Ramos 

Mark Weiner 
Michele Skryd 
Michael Phelan 
Robert Lovero 
Joel Erickson 
Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City CIerI< of the City of Berwyn on __ 



ORDINANCE NUMBER--

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A STATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
BERWYN AND BNSF RAILWAY COMPAl\'Y 

WHEREAS, the City ofBerwyn (the "City), is a Home Rule the City within the purview of 

Article VB, Section 6(a) of the Illinois Constitution (1970), and, as such, may exercise any power 

and perform any function pertaining to its govcrnment and affairs: 

WHEREAS, The City and Burlington Northern, Inc", predecessor-in-interest to BNSF, 

entered into a Contract and Lease Agreement dated March 1, 1979 (the "Original Lease"), regarding 

cer1ain premises along and adjacent to BNSF's line of railroad within The City's boundaries, such 

premises being further described therein" 

WHEREAS, the City and Burlington Nortbern Railroad Company, predecessor-in-interest to 

BNSF, entered into that certain First Amendmentto Contract and Lease Agreement dated March 17, 

1986 (the "First Amendment"), whereby the parties amended the Original Lease to, among other 

things, extend the term thereof: The Original Lease as amended by the terms of the First 

Amendment shall be refened to herein as the "Lease"" 

WHEREAS, the Lease expired on April 30,2006" 

WHEREAS, the City and BNSF wish to agree with each other concerning the continued use 

of the premises described in the Lease under terms and conditions providing for the rights and 

obligations of the parties. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, by and through its home rule powers, as follows: 

Sectiol1 J That the above recital is incorporated herein and made a part hereof. 



Sectioll] That the Station Agreement between the City of Berwyn and BNSF Railway 

Company, for a period commencint; May 1,2006 through April 30, 2031 is hereby approved and the 

Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute same. 

Sectioll 3. That the Mayor and Corporation Counsel are hereby authorized to undertake any 

and all actions as may be required to implement and enforce the provisions of said Lease, and, in 

particular, any and all undertakings on the part of the City as itemized therein. 

Sectioll 4 That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its passage, approval and 

publication as provided by law. 

ADOPTED this __ day of ____ , 2007, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

YES NO ABSENT PRESENT 

Chapman 

Ramos 

Weiner 

Skryd 

Phelan 



Lavero 

Erickson 

(Mayor O'Connor) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED by the Mayor on ____ , 2007. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
CITY CLERK 

Michael A. O'Connor 
MAYOR 



STATION AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF BERWYN 
AND BNSF RAILWAY COMPANY 

THIS STATION AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made to be effective as of May 1 , 2006 
(the "Effective Date") by and between the CITY OF BERWYN. ILLINOIS, a home rule 
municipal corporation (the "Municipality"), and BNSF RAILWAY COMPANY, a Delaware 
corporation ("BNSF''). 

RECITALS 

A MUnicipality and Burlington Northern, Inc, predecessor-in-interest to BNSF, 
entered into that certain Contract and Lease Agreement dated March 1,1979 (the "Original 
Lease"), regarding certain premises along and adjacent to BNSF's line of railroad within 
Municipality's boundaries, such premises being further described therein" 

R Municipality and Burlington Northern Railroad Company, predecessor-in-interest 
to BNSF, entered into that certain First Amendment to Contract and Lease Agreement dated 
March 17,1986 (the "First Amendment"), whereby the parties amended the Original Lease to, 
among other things, extend the term thereof. The Original Lease as amended by the terms of 
the First Amendment shaH be referred to herein as the "Lease"" 

C. The Lease expired April 30, 2006. 

D. Municipality and BNSF wish to agree with each other concerning the continued 
use of the premises described in the Lease under terms and conditions providing for the rights 
and obligations of the parties. 

AGREEMENTS 

NOW, THEREFORE, in order to continue to promote public safety and comfort in the 
Commuter Stations (defined below), to ensure that these travel facilities continue to be properly 
maintained and repaired, and the grounds around them properly cared for and beautified, and in 
consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth, Municipality does 
hereby contract, promise and agree with BNSF, and BNSF does likewise contract, promise and 
agree with Municipality, as folJows: 

Section 1. LEASE OF PROPERTIES 

A For an annual rental of One DolJar ($1.00) payable by Municipality, BNSF hereby 
leases to Municipality and Municipality does hereby lease from BNSF the parcels of land 
described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto, but exclusive of any and all improvements thereon 
(collectively, the "Leased Premises"), for a period of twenty-five (25) years (the "Term") 
commencing May 1, 2006, and expiring April 30, 2031, unless earlier terminated as provided 
herein" The Leased Premises encompass the three commuter stations known as: (i) Berwyn 
Depot, located at or near the intersection of Oak Park Avenue and Windsor Avenue; (ii) 
LaVergne Station, located at or near the intersection of Ridgeland Avenue and Windsor Avenue; 
and (iii) Harlem Avenue Station, located at or near the intersection of Harlem Avenue and 

1 



Windsor Avenue (collectively, the "Commuter Stations"). The legal descriptions of the Leased 
Premises are shown on Exhibit" A" attached hereto and by this reference made a part hereof 

Provided, however, that BNSF reserves unto itself, its successors, assigns and 
licensees the right to use the Leased Premises in the general conduct of its railroad business, to 
operate and maintain pipelines, telephone, fiber optic lines, signal lines, electric transmission 
lines and other facilities of like character as may now or in the future exist upon, over or under 
said Leased Premises, and to construct, operate, maintain and renew such additional facilities 
thereon so long as the same will not interfere with the use of said Leased Premises for the 
purposes hereinafter set forth 

B. Municipality shall use the Leased Premises only for the following purposes and 
for no other purpose whatsoever: 

(1) to provide BNSF's patrons with commuter station Facilities (as hereinafter 
defined), including without limitation a waiting room or rooms, platforms, 
canopies and other appropriate facilities adequate for current patronage 
use; 

(2) to provide and maintain parking stalls in associated parking facilities and 
along the Leased Premises; 

(3) to provide facilities on or in conjunction with the Leased Premises for 
convenient drop-off or pick-up of BNSF's patrons, either by car or by bus, 
at the Commuter Stations; and 

(4) for such other uses as are expressly permitted under the terms of this 
Agreement or pursuant to separate agreement 

c. Municipality agrees that none of the Leased Premises will be used, nor will 
Municipality permit the Leased Premises to be used, for parking within twenty (20) feet of the 
center line of any trackage. 

D. Any portion of the Leased Premises within twenty (20) feet from the nearest rail 
of BNSF's trackage can only be used for the construction, maintenance, repair and renewal of 
platforms, canopies and landscaping only (subject to legal clearance requirements) and for no 
other purpose whatsoever 

E. During the Term of this Agreement, MuniCipality shall payor cause to be paid all 
taxes, special assessments, license fees or other governmental charges or fees which may 
become due or which may be assessed or levied upon or against the Leased Premises or any 
Facilities located thereon, or in any manner arising from or growing out of any activities 
conducted on the Leased Premises by Municipality, its subtenants, licensees or assigns Such 
taxes, special assessments, license fees or other governmental charges or fees may be treated 
for the purpose of this Agreement as Leased Premises Costs within the proviSions of Section 5 
below. 

Section 2. FACILlTI ES 

As a result of a prior sale of the station building, platforms, canopies, stairways, lighting, 
shelters, entrances and exits, sidewalks, driveways and walkways (collectively, these 
improvements, including any subsequent improvements thereto or replacements thereof, are 

2 



referred to herein as the "Facilities") from BNSF to Municipality pursuant to the terms 
enumerated in the Original Lease, Municipality possesses all rights, title and interest in and to 
the Facilities at and near the Harlem Avenue Station. BNSF retains all rights, title and interest 
in and to the Facilities at and near the Berwyn Depot and the LaVergne Station. 

Section 3. USE OF LEASED PREMISES AND FACILITIES BY MUNICIPALITY 

A Municipality agrees that the Leased Premises and Facilities located thereon will 
be llsed for the provision of commuter rail service, unless such continued use is made 
impossible by lawful action of the Regional Transportation Authority or unless BNSF is lawfUlly 
permitted to cease operations. The Facilities shall be so used for the Term of the Agreement as 
set forth in Section 1 above or for the period of the useful life of such Facilities, whichever is 
less. The Facilities shall be operated and utilized for the use, comfort, safety and convenience 
of the patrons of BNSF's commuter train service 

B. Subject to the prior written approval of BNSF, and upon reasonable financial 
terms to be mutuallY agreed upon by the parties, Municipality shall be permitted to utilize the 
Leased Premises and Facilities located thereon for the location and operation of commercial, 
retail or municipal enterprises, provided that they do not unduly interfere with the use of the 
Leased Premises and Facilities for the purposes contemplated by this Agreement. Any 
revenues realized from the use of the Leased Premises or Facilities, including without limitation 
revenues generated by parking fees, commercial, retail or municipal enterprises as permitted 
herein (collectively, "Leased Premises Revenues"), shall be applied by Municipality against 
Leased Premises Costs (as hereinafter defined) as set forth in Section 5 below. 

C. Municipality agrees not to construct any Facilities or other improvements upon 
the Leased Premises without the prior written consent of BNSF of the proposed use, such 
approval to be in BNSF's reasonable discretion. If the proposed use is approved by BNSF in 
writing, all Facilities or other improvements constructed upon the Leased Premises must be 
approved in advance of construction by BNSF with respect to design, location and construction 
standards. Failure of BNSF to give such approval, conditional approval or disapproval within 
sixty (60) days after receipt of Municipality's submission of design plans, location and 
construction standards shall constitute approval. 

o Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything contained in this Agreement to the 
contrary, however, Municipality will not (a) use, occupy or permit the use or occupancy of the 
Leased Premises in any manner which violates any law, statute, regulation, ordinance, order, 
covenant, restriction or decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, or is dangerous to life or 
property, or creates a public or private nuisance, or for a use other than a permitted use 
hereunder; (b) keep, or permit to be kept, any substance in or conduct, or permit to be 
conducted, any operation from the Leased Premises which might emit offensive odors or 
conditions, or make undue noise or create undue vibrations; or (c) commit or permit to remain 
any waste to the Leased Premises Additionally, in no event shall Municipality use, occupy or 
permit the use or occupancy of the Leased Premises for any of the following: (I) any fire sale, 
bankruptcy sale (unless pursuant to a court order), or auction house operation; (Ii) any type of 
"flea-market" or "tent" sales; (iii) any pool or billiard room; (iv) any amusement arcade, "bingo" 
parlor, or game center; (v) any type of bar, tavern, nightclub or discotheque; (vi) any type of 
"head shop"; (vii) any massage parlor, modeling studio, tanning salon or establishment where 
men or women are engaged in salacious activities or any type of establishment that would be 
considered a sexually oriented business by prevailing community standards; or (viii) any 
business engaged in the rental and/or sale of pornographic literature or video products 

3 



Section 4. WAIVERS OF LIEN 

Municipality agrees to require each Contractor (as hereinafter defined) performing any 
work upon the Leased Premises to furnish waivers of lien prior to making final payment to such 
Contractorc 

Section 5. LEASED PREMISES REVENUES AND COSTS 

A During the Term of this Agreement, MUnicipality shall collect and apply the 
Leased Premises Revenues to the payment of all reasonable and actual costs and expenses of 
operating, maintaining, repairing, cleaning, heating, insuring and lighting the Facilities on the 
Leased Premises, including the cost of snow and ice removal, grass and weed cutting, tree and 
shrubbery care and sewer, water and other utility charges, including a reasonable allocation of 
administrative overhead not included in the foregoing charges (collectively, "Leased Premises 
Costs")c 

B After Municipality shall have been fully reimbursed for all Leased Premises 
Costs, the balance, if any, of any Leased Premises Revenues earned on the Leased Premises 
shall be set aside to cover the cost of any commuter-related capital expenditures or major 
maintenance work on the Leased Premisescc 

Co Municipality shall keep adequate records concerning the collection of Leased 
Premises Revenues from the Leased Premises, and of all Leased Premises Costs, and shall 
institute and maintain adequate internal controls for the proper collection and accounting for 
such Leased Premises Revenues and Leased Premises Costs. Once a year, BNSF may 
request paper copies of the Municipality's financial reports and budgets regarding Leased 
Premises Revenueso MuniCipality shall send paper copies of requested documents to BNSF 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of request In addition to and not in limitation of the foregoing, 
BNSF shall have the right, upon ten (10) days' notice, to examine the books and records of 
Municipality relative to the collection of such Leased Premises Revenues and the payment of 
such Leased Premises Costsc 

Ec MUnicipality may receive donations to finance operations, maintenance and 
reconstruction of the Berwyn Depot and such donations shall not be included in Leased 
Premises Revenues. 

Section 6. MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF LEASED PREMISES 

A. During the Term of this Agreement, MUnicipality shall operate, maintain and 
repair, as necessary, the Facilities located on the Leased Premises, and shall keep the Facilities 
and the Leased Premises in a good state of repair, appearance, order and cleanliness, 
corresponding to standards that apply to public buildings, grounds and facilities otherwise 
owned or operated by Municipalityc 

B As part of its obligation to operate the Facilities, Municipality shall provide: 

(1) two parking spaces each at each Commuter Station that has a ticket 
agent, and one parking space at each Commuter Station that does not 
have a ticket agent, and one parking space at each grade crossing, all 
such parking spaces to be reserved for BNSF's sale and exclusive use. 

4 



Municipality shall cause such spaces to be appropriately marked for 
BNSF's exclusive use, and Municipality shall police such spaces and 
spots to ensure BNSF's exclusive use; 

(2) an enclosed room, no smaller than eight (8) feet by eight (8) feet in size, 
at the BelWyn Depot suitable for BNSF's use as an agency room for ticket 
sales and for public information purposes (the "Agency Room"). 
Municipality, as part of the Leased Premises Costs, shall equip the 
Agency Room with the following: 

(i) a private toilet and wash basin, for BNSF's sole and 
exclusive use 

(ii) heating and air conditioning 
(iii) a built-in patron window 
(Iv) a cash and record storage drawer 
(v) a three (3) drawer filing cabinet 
(vi) a small safe and built-in desk; 

(3) heat, water and light to the Commuter Stations, including the Agency 
Room at the BelWyn Depot, and shall cause each of the Commuter 
Stations to be open and heated in accordance with the requirements 
lawfully imposed by the agency regulating the service; and 

(4) all commuter parking improvements shall be designed, constructed and 
installed by, or for and on behalf of Municipality, but each such 
improvement located on the Leased Premises shall be subject to BNSF's 
prior written approval regarding plans, specifications and location, which 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

C. When necessary to the safety and convenience of persons using the Leased 
Premises, Municipality shall promptly remove ice and snow from the platforms, entrances, exits, 
sidewalks, driveways and parking areas, located on the Leased Premises, and when necessary, 
shall de-ice the same (except for parking areas) with commercial products in order that they will 
be suitable for use 

Section 7. PARKING 

DUring the Term, Municipality shall allow commuter patrons at least twelve (12) hours of 
continuous commuter parking at rates as may from time to time be established by the Berwyn 
City Council by ordinance, which rates shall be established at a level high enough to cover the 
Leased Premises Costs; provided that in no event shall Municipality charge a rate of less than 
,,--_-:-:-for twelve (12) hours. The parties stipulate and agree that, at the Effective Date: (i) 
the parking rate for commuter parking is $ __ for twelve (12) hours and (Ii) the minimum 
number of parking spaces available at the Leased Premises for commuter parking is __ " 
Municipality may, from time to time, increase the parking rates charged patrons for use of 
commuter parking spaces located on the Leased Premises, provided that such increases shall 
be subject to the prior approval of BNSF, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld In 
the event Municipality proposes to increase such rates, Municipality shall provide a written 
notice to BNSF of the proposed increase. If BNSF shall fail to approve or disapprove such rate 
increase in writing within a period of sixty (60) days from the date that notice is received, 
approval shall be deemed to have been given and Municipality may institute the proposed 
increase. General parking may be permitted on the Leased Premises after 5:00 p.m. on 

5 



weekdays and, additionally all day on Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, with or without charge, 
providing the same shall not interfere with the needs of the commuting public on the following 
day. 

Section S, INSURANCE 

For purposes of this Section S, "Railroad" shall mean "Burlington Northern Santa Fe 
Corporation", "BNSF Railway Company" and the subsidiaries, successors, assigns and affiliates 
of each. Municipality shall mean "City of Berwyn Municipal Corporation," and its officers, 
officials, agents, employees, and authorized representatives. 

Municipality is allowed to self-insure without the prior written consent of Railroad. 
Unless otherwise covered by any risk insurance policy provisions, any deductible, self-insured 
retention or other financial responsibility for claims shall be covered directly by Municipality in 
lieu of insurance in an amount not to exceed $1,000,000.00 in aggregate. Any and all Railroad 
liabilities that would otherwise, in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, be covered 
by Municipality's insurance will be covered as if MuniCipality elected not to include a deductible, 
self-insured retention or other financial responsibility for claims 

Municipality promises and agrees, during the Term of this Agreement, to provide 
adequate proof of self-insured retention or other financial responsibility to Railroad, such proof 
to demonstrate to Railroad's satisfaction that Municipality's self-insurance or other financial 
responsibility provides substantially the following coverages and minimum amounts, and meets 
the other standards and reqUirements stated herein. 

In the alternative to self insurance, Municipality may furnish to Railroad an acceptable 
certificate(s} of insurance including an original signature of the authorized representative 
evidencing the required coverage, endorsements, and amendments and referencing the 
contract audit/folder number if available. The policy(ies) shall contain a provision that obligates 
the insurance company(ies) issuing such policy(ies) to notify Railroad in writing at least 30 days 
prior to any cancellation, non-renewal, SUbstitution or material alternation, This cancellation 
provisions shall be indicated on the certificate of insurance In the event of a claim or lawsuit 
involving Railroad arising out of this Agreement, Municipality will make available any required 
policy covering such claim or lawsuit Required coverage in the event Municipality elects to 
obtain insurance from an insurance company will be as follows: 

A Commercial General Liability Insurance This insurance shall contain broad form 
contractual liability with a combined single limit of a minimum of $2,000,000 each 
occurrence and an aggregate limit of at least $ 4,000,000 .. Coverage must be purchased 
on a post 1998 ISO occurrence form or equivalent and include coverage for, but not 
limited to, the following: 

• Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
+ Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
+ Fire legal liability 
+ Products and completed operations 

B. Business Automobile Insurance This insurance shall contain a combined single limit of 
at least $1,000,000 per occurrence, and include coverage for, but not limited to the 
following: 

• Bodily injury and property damage 

6 



• Any and all vehicles owned, used or hired 

C. Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance. This insurance shall include 
coverage for, but not limited to: 

• Municipality's statutory liability under the worker's compensation laws of the 
state(s) in which the work is to be performed. If optional under State law, the 
insurance must cover all employees anyway. 

• Employers' Liability (Part B) with limits of at least $500,000 each accident, 
$500,000 by disease policy limit, $500,000 by disease each employee. 

Other Requirements: 

All policy(ies) (excluding Workers Compensation and if applicable, Railroad Protective) 
shall include a severability of interest endorsement and Railroad shall be named as an 
additional insured with respect to work performed under this Agreement Severability of interest 
and naming Railroad as additional insured shall be indicated on the certificate of insurance. 

Any insurance policy shall be written by a reputable insurance company acceptable to 
Railroad or with a current Best's Guide Rating of A- and Class VII or better, and authorized to 
do business in the state(s) in which the service is to be provided. 

Not more frequently than once every five years, Railroad may reasonably modify the 
required insurance coverage to reflect then-current risk management practices in the railroad 
industry and underwriting practices in the insurance industry. 

Failure to provide evidence as required by this Section 8 shall entitle, but not require, 
Railroad to terminate this Agreement pursuant to Section 11 (A) .. Acceptance of a certificate that 
does not comply with this Section 8 shall not operate as a waiver of Municipality's obligations 
hereunder 

The fact that insurance (including, without limitation, self-insurance) is obtained by 
Municipality shall not be deemed to release or diminish the liability of Municipality. Damages 
recoverable by Railroad shall not be limited by the amount of the required insurance coverage. 

The ballasted right-of-way and tracks are not part of the Leased Premises, and it is 
understood that such areas are excluded from this insurance requirement. 

Section 9. PROCEDURES AS TO REPAIRS, TERMINATION OF PRIOR AGREEMENTS 
AND PROHIBITION OF ASSIGNMENT 

A To the exlent any Facilities or other improvements are constructed, improved or 
rehabilitated by Municipality under the terms of this Agreement, Municipality shall arrange 
therefore at its expense, using outside Contractors if it chooses. When necessary, MUnicipality 
shall arrange for the repair and replacement of any Facilities or other improvements located or 
to be located on the Leased Premises, using Leased Premises Revenues, other revenues 
and/or insurance proceeds, as the case may be, for such repairs and replacements 

B With respect to capital replacement of all or any portion of the Facilities at the 
end of such Facilities' (or portion thereof) useful life, BNSF and Municipality will jointly seek 
appropriate funding to make necessary capital improvements to the Facilities. Under no 

7 



circumstances will either BNSF or Municipality be individually obligated to bear the entire cost of 
capital improvements to the Facilities at the end of such Facilities' (or portion thereof) useful life. 

C. This Agreement is effective as of May 1, 2006, without prejudice to any liability 
accrued prior to this effective date. This Agreement may be modified only by a written 
agreement signed by BNSF and Municipality. 

D. Municipality may not transfer or assign this Agreement to any other person or 
party without the prior written consent of BNSF, and any successor to Municipality will be 
required in writing to fulfill all of the requirements, terms and conditions herein contained. 

Section 10. MUNICIPALITY'S USE OF CONTRACT SERVICES 

It is understood and agreed that Municipality may contract with outside parties to furnish 
maintenance or operational services in and about the Leased Premises, and Municipality may 
reimburse itself for the cost of those contract services as Leased Premises Costs under the 
provisions of Section 5 above 

Section 11. TERMINATION CLAUSE 

A. If either party to this Agreement shall fail to perform its SUbstantive duties and 
obligations hereunder, the other party may deliver a written complaint to the delinquent party 
specifying the claimed failures, and demanding they be corrected.. If the notified party fails to 
satisfy this demand, or fails to adequately satisfy said demand within forty (40) days, the 
complaining party may, upon thirty (30) days' written notice to the delinquent party, declare this 
Agreement to be terminated. 

B. After such termination, each party may pursue such legal remedies as it may 
elect to serve its own interest. 

C If BNSF ceases commuter rail passenger service to the Harlem Station, then the 
Facilities located at the Harlem Station shall revert to BNSF and this Agreement will terminate 
solely with respect to the Harlem Station, provided that in such event this Agreement shall 
continue in full force and effect as to the other Commuter Stations If BNSF ceases commuter 
rail passenger service to the Berwyn Depot and/or LaVergne Station, then this Agreement will 
terminate solely with respect to the location or locations where such service has ceased; 
provided that in such event this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect as to the other 
Commuter Stations to which commuter rail passenger service is still being provided. 

Section 12. CONTRACTORS' INSURANCE REQUIREMENT 

In all contracts executed by Municipality for the construction, rehabilitation, improvement, 
repair or maintenance of the Facilities or other structures or improvements located on the 
Leased Premises, or to be located on such Leased Premises, Municipality will require 
appropriate clauses to be inserted into its contracts requiring Municipality's outside consultants, 
contractors and subcontractors of any tier (collectively, "Contractors") to indemnify BNSF and 
Municipality, and their affiliated companies and each of their partners, successors, assigns, 
legal representatives, officers, directors, shareholders, employees and agents (collectively, the 
"Indemnitees"), for, from and against any and all claims, liabilities, fines, penalties, costs, 
damages, losses, liens, causes of action, suits, demands, judgments and expenses (including, 
without limitation, court costs, attorneys' fees and costs of investigation, removal and 

8 



remediation and governmental oVersight costs) environmental or otherwise (collectively, 
"Liabilities") of any nature, kind or description of any person or entity directly or indirectly 
arising out of, resulting from or related to (in whole or in part) the work performed or to be 
performed by such Contractor, even if such Liabilities arise from or are attributed to, in whole or 
in part, any negligence of any Indemnitee. In addition, prior to the commencement of any 
construction, rehabilitation, improvement, repair or maintenance activities on the Leased 
Premises by any Contractor pursuant to a contract or contracts that sets forth a total amount 
(including costs of labor, materials and overhead and profit) to be paid to Contractor that equals 
or exceeds $50,000, Municipality shall require each such Contractor to review and execute 
BNSF's then-current standard agreement between BNSF and contractors for work to be 
performed on BNSF property ("Standard Contractor Agreement"). 

Section 13. SUPERVISION 

Municipality promises and agrees that it will appoint and employ competent engineers to 
supervise all Contractors' activities on the Leased Premises during the Term of this Agreement, 
and MuniCipality further promises and agrees that it Will, by appropriate means of inspection or 
testing, or otherwise, assure itself that all Contractors working upon the Leased Premises will 
have fully complied with all specifications and reqUirements of their respective agreements. 
When any such Contractor's work has been completed to the satisfaction of Municipality, 
MUnicipality will promptly notify BNSF in writing of that facL 

[Signature Page Fol/ow~l 

9 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed as of the date below each party's signature; to be effective, however, as of the 
Effective Date. 

MUNICIPALITY: 

City of Berwyn, Illinois, a home rule municipal corporation 

By: 

Name: ____ ~M~ic~h~a~e~IAQ.~O~'~C~o~n~no~r ____ __ 

Title: Mayor 

Date: 

Attest: ____________ _ 

City Clerk 

BNSF: 

BNSF Railway Company, a Delaware corporation 

By: 

Name: _________________ _ 

Title: 

Date: 

10 



EXHIBIT nAn 

Description of Leased Premises 

All those portions of the BNSF Railway Company's right-of-way in Section 31, T 39 N, Rl E 3rd 
PM County of Cook, State of Illinois described as follows, to-wit; 

Beginning at a point in the Easterly line of Harlem Avenue distant 62 feet Northerly measured at 
right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel with said second 
main track centerline to a point in the Westerly line of Wisconsin Avenue; thence Southerly 
along said Westerly line of Wisconsin Avenue a distance of 15 feet; thence Easterly along a line 
parallel with and distant 47 feet, measured at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main 
track, to a point in the Easterly line of Wisconsin Avenue; thence Northerly along said Easterly 
line of Wisconsin Avenue a distance of 15 feet; thence Easterly along a line parallel with and 
distant 62 feet North measured at right angles to said centerline of the 2nd main track to a point 
in the Westerly line of Home Avenue; thence Southerly along said Westerly line of Home 
Avenue to a point distant 24 feet Northerly measured at right angles from the centerline of the 
2nd main track; thence Westerly parallel with said centerline of the 2nd main track a distance of 
620 feet more or less to the Easterly end of an asphalt platform; thence Southerly at right angles 
a distance of 5 feet; thence Westerly parallel with said centerline of the 2nd main track to a point 
in the Easterly line of said Harlem Avenue; thence Northerly along said Easterly line of Harlem 
Avenue to the Point of Beginning, and Also 

Beginning at a point in the Easterly line of said Harlem Avenue distant 24 feet Southerly 
measured at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel with 
said centerline of the 2nd main track a distance of 152 feet more or less to concrete platform; 
thence Northerly to a point distant 19 feet Southerly measured at right angles to the centerline 
of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel with said centerline of the 2nd main track a 
distance of 850 feet more or less to a point; thence Southerly 5 feet to a point; thence Easterly 
parallel with said centerline of the 2nd main track to a point on the Westerly line of Home 
Avenue; thence Southerly along said Westerly line to a point distant 58 feet measured at right 
angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Westerly parallel with said centerline to 
a point in the Easterly line of Wisconsin Avenue; thence Northerly along said Easterly line to a 
point distant 33 feet Southerly measured at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main 
track; thence Westerly parallel to said centerline to a point on the Westerly line of said 
Wisconsin Avenue; thence Southerly along said Westerly line to a point distant 58 feet 
Southerly measured at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Westerly 
parallel with said centerline to a point on the Westerly line of Maple Avenue; thence Southerly 
along said Westerly line to a point distant 83 feet Southerly measured at right angles from the 
centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Westerly to a point on the Easterly line of Harlem 
Avenue; thence Northerly along said Easterly line to the Point of Beginning; and Also 

Beginning at a point in the Easterly line of Home Avenue distant 62 feet Northerly measured at 
right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly along a line parallel with 
said centerline to a point on the Westerly line of Kenilworth Avenue; thence Southerly along said 
Westerly line to a point distant 47 feet Northerly measured at right angles from the centerline of 
the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel with said centerline to a point in the Easterly line of 
said Kenilworth Avenue; thence Northerly along said Easterly line to a point distant 62 feet 
Northerly measured at right angles from said centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly 
parallel with said centerline to a point in the Westerly line of Grove Avenue; thence Southerly 

Exhibit "A" 



along said Westerly line to a point distant 24 feet Northerly measured at right angles from said 
centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Westerly parallel with said centerline to a point in the -
Easterly line of said Home Avenue; thence Northerly along said Easterly line of Home Avenue 
to the Point of Beginning, and Also 

Beginning at a point in the East line of Home Avenue distant 24 feet Southerly measured at right 
angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel with said centerline to 
a point on the Westerly line of Grove Avenue; thence Southerly along said Westerly line to a 
point distant 455 feet Southerly measured at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main 
track; thence Westerly parallel with said centerline to a point on the Easterly line of Kenilworth 
Avenue; thence Northerly along said Easterly line to a point distant 24 feet Southerly measured 
at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Westerly parallel with said 
centerline to a point on the Westerly line of said Kenilworth Avenue; thence Southerly along said 
Westerly line to a point distant 45.5 feet Southerly measured at right angles from the centerline 
of the 2nd main track; thence Westerly parallel to said centerline to a point on the Easterly line 
of said Home Avenue; thence Northerly along said Easterly line of Home Avenue to the Point of 
Beginning, and Also 

Beginning at a point in the Easterly line of Grove Avenue, distant 62 feet Northerly, measured at 
right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel with said 
centerline to a point on the Westerly line of Oak Park Avenue; thence Southerly along said 
Westerly line to a point distant 24 feet Northerly measured at right angles from the centerline of 
the 2nd main track; thence Westerly parallel with said centerline to a point on the Easterly line of 
Grove Avenue; thence Northerly along said Easterly line of Grove Avenue to the Point of 
Beginning, and Also 

Beginning at a point in the Easterly line of Grove Avenue distant 24 feet Southerly measured at 
right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel with said 
centerline to a point in the Westerly line of Oak Park Avenue; thence Southerly along said 
Westerly line to a point distant 58 feet Southerly measured at right angles from the centerline of 
the 2nd main track; thence Westerly parallel with said centerline a distance of 100.05 feet; 
thence Southerly at right angles a distance of 30 feet; thence Westerly at right angles a distance 
of 60 feet; thence Northerly at right angles a distance of 15 feet; thence Westerly at right angles 
a distance of 15 feet; thence Northerly at right angles a distance of 15 feet; thence Westerly 
along a line parallel with and distant 58 feet Southerly measured at right angles from the 
centerline of the 2nd main tiack to a point in the Easterly line of said Grove Avenue; thence 
Northerly along said Easterly line of Grove Avenue to the Point of Beginning, and Also 

Beginning at a point in the Easterly line of Oak Park Avenue distant 62 feet Northerly, measured 
at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel to said 
centerline to a point in the Westerly line of Wesley Avenue; thence Southerly along said 
Westerly line to a point distant 47 feet Northerly measured at right angles from the centerline of 
the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel with said centerline to the Eesterly line of said 
Wesley Avenue; thence Northerly along said Easterly line to a point distant 62 feet Northerly 
measured at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel to 
said centerline to a point in the Westerly line of East Avenue; thence Southerly along said 
Westerly line to a point distant 24 feet Northerly measured at right angles from the centerline of 
the 2nd main track; thence Westerly parallel with said centerline a distance of 462 feet more or 
less to Easterly end of Platform; thence South at right angles a distance of 5 feet to a point; 
thence Westerly along a line parallel with and distant 19 feet Northerly measured at right angles 
from the centerline of the 2nd main track to a point in the Easterly line of said Oak Park Avenue; 

Exhibit "A" 2 



thence Northerly along said Easterly line of Oak Park Avenue to the Point of Beginning, and 
Also 

Beginning at a point in the Easterly line of Oak Park Avenue distant 24 feet Southerly measured 
at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel to said 
centerline a distance of 455 feet to the Westerly end of a platform; thence Northerly at right 
angles a distance of 5 feet to a point distant 19 feet Southerly measured at right angles from-the 
centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel with said centerline to a point in the 
Westerly line of East Avenue; thence Southerly along said Westerly line to a point distant 58 
feet Southerly measured at right angles from the centerline-of the 2nd main track; thence 
Westerly parallel with said centerline to a point in the Easterly line of Wesley Avenue; thence 
Northerly along said Easterly line to a point distant 33 feet Southerly measured at right angles 
from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Westerly parallel with said centerline to a point 
in the Westerly line of said Wesley Avenue; thence Southerly along said Westerly line to a point 
distant 58 feet Southerly measured at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; 
thence Westerly parallel with said centerline to a point on the centerline of Euclid Avenue; 
thence Northerly along the centerline of Euclid Avenue to a point distant 45 .. 5 feet Southerly 
measured at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Westerly parallel with 
said centerline to a point in the Easterly line of Oak Park Avenue; thence Northerly along said 
Easterly line of Oak Park Aveonue to the Point of Beginning, and Also 

Beginning at a point on the Easterly line of East Avenue distant 62 feet Northerly measured at 
right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel with said 
centerline to a point in the Westerly line of Gunderson Avenue; thence Southerly along said 
Westerly line to a point distant 47 feet Northerly measured at right angles from the centerline of 
the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel with said centerline to a point in the Easterly line of 
said Gunderson Avenue; thence Northerly along said Easterly line to a point distant 62 feet 
Northerly measured at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly 
parallel with said centerline to a point in the Westerly line of Ridgeland Avenue; thence 
Southerly along said Westerly line to a point distant 24 feet Northerly measured at right angles 
from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Westerly parallel with said centerline to a point 
in the Easterly line of said East Avenue; thence Northerly along said East line of East Avenue; 
to the Point of Beginning, and Also 

Beginning at a point in the Easterly line of East Avenue, distant 24 feet Southerly measured at 
right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Easterly parallel with said 
centerline to a point in the Westerly line of Ridgeland Avenue; thence Southerly along said 
Westerly line to a paint of intersection with the Northerly line of 70-foot Wide Windsor Avenue; 
thence Westerly along said Northerly line of Windsor Avenue a distance of 318.2 feet to a point 
distant 33 feet Southerly measured at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; 
thence Westerly parallel with said centerline to a point in the Northerly extension of the Westerly 
line of Elmwood Avenue; thence Southerly along said Northerly extension of the Westerly line of 
Elmwood Avenue to a point distant 58 feet Southerly, measured at right angles from the 
centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Westerly parallel with said centerline to a point in the 
Easterly line of Gunderson Avenue; thence Northerly along said Easterly line to a point distant 
33 feet Southerly measured at right angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence 
Westerly parallel with said centerline to a point in the Westerly line of said Gunderson Avenue; 
thence Southerly along said Westerly line to a point distant 58 feet Southerly measured at right 
angles from the centerline of the 2nd main track; thence Westerly parallel with said centerline to 
a point in the Easterly line of East Avenue; thence Northerly along said Easterly line of East 
Avenue to the Point of Beginning 

Exhibit "A" 3 



Section K. 

Consent genda 



November 20, 2007 

Re: Payroll 

Council Members: 

ALDERMAN MARK WEINER 
- -- -3132 Wenonah - .-

Berwyn, Illinois 60402 
MarkWeiner l@Hotmail.Com 

708484-7512 
Www_ThirdWarclAlderman.Com 

The current payroll has been prepared for review by the Finance Department and for approval at 
the November 27, 2007 COlmcil meeting. 

Payroll for 11-14-07 $840,972005 

Very truly yours, 

~~~ 
Mark Weiner, Budget Committee Chairman 



/ 

November 21, 2007 

Re: Payables 

Council Members: 

ALDERMAN MARK WEINER 
313 2 Wenonah 

Bernryn, Illinois 60402 
Mark Weiner l@Hotmail.Com 

708-484-7512 
www.ThirdWardAlderman.Com 

The current payabJes have been prepared for review by the Finance Department and are ready for 
approval at the November 27, 2007 Council meeting. 

Payables: $890,205.64 

Very truly yours, 

VL-L 
Mark Weiner, Budget Committee Chairman 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK H 

01 334808 

01 334798 

01 334800 

01 334813 

01 334847 

01 334777 

01 334788 

01 334894 

01 334858 

01 334848 

01 334782 

01 334821 

01 334795 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16: 33 RUN: TUESDAY NOV202007 14:22 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 11/15/07 - 11/19/07 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR" ADDRS » VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT fl DESCRIPTION INVOICE fl 

$117.00 11/15/07 01458 0 ABARR SALES, INC. 
117.00 11-5-23-5215 A 

$41. 01 11/15/07 00879 0 ABC SCHOOL SUPPLY INC. 
41.01 23-5-00-5335 A 

$1979.80 11/15/07 00931 0 ADT SECURITY SERVICES 
1132.59 23-5-00-5335 A 

847.21 23-5-00-5300 A 

$1531.84 11/15/07 01565 0 ABC ONE STOP GROUP,INC. 
1531.84 23-5-00-5220 A 

$361.49 11/19/07 00038 0 ALL BRAKE AUTO CLUTCH 
45.01 11-5-20-5500 A 

316.48 11-5-20-5500 A 

$10237.00 11/15/07 00076 0 ALPHA BUILDING MAINTENANCE SERIVCE INC. 
1053.00 11-5-11-5500 BD 

918.00 11-5-23-5300 REC 
3344.00 11-5-08-5300 PD 

660.00 11-5-11-5500 BD INV 7781CB 
918.00 11-5-23-5300 REC 

3344.00 11-5-08-5300 PD 

$67.51 11/15/07 00365 0 AMSTERDAM PRINTING AND LITHO CORP. 
67.51 23-5-00-5335 A 

$28710.00 11/19/07 01415 0 ANTHONY ROOFING,A TECTA AMERICA COMPANY 
28710.00 11-5-29-5720 A 

$56.00 11/19/07 00198 0 ART FLO SHIRT AND LETTERING 
56.00 32-5-00-5251 A 

$473.14 11/19/07 00055 0 AT & T 
85.31 15-5-00-5300 A 

171.37 11-5-07-5310 A 
216.46 11-5-08 -5310 A 

$460.89 11/15/07 00219 0 AUDIO EDITIONS 
460.89 23-5-00-5220 A 

$1079.74 11/15/07 01838 0 BAKER & TAYLOR ~ERTAINMENT 
1079.74 23-5-00-5220 Q 

$1755.96 11/15/07 00531 0 BAKER & TAYLOR,INC. 
1755.96 23-5-00-5210 A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

3 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK U 

01 334838 

01 334889 

01 334826 

01 334872 

01 334834 

01 334803 

01 334876 

01 334820 

01 334898 

01 334770 

01 334801 

01 334875 

01 334769 

01 334871 

01 334807 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: TUESDAY NOV202007 14:22 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE, 11/15/07 - 11/19/07 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR U ADDRS II VENDOR NAHE 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT H DESCRIPTION INVOICE U 

$20056.30 n/15/07 33143 0 BERWYN FOREIGN FIRE TAX FUND 
20056.30 11-4-07-4381 A 

$798.00 n/19/07 01300 0 BLACK HILLS ~ITION 
798.00 11-5-08-5335 A 

$1475.00 n/15/07 20077 0 BOB DZIEDZIC 
1475.00 11-2-00-2400 A 

$860.00 n/19/07 00888 0 BOB 1 S LAWN CARE 
860.00 11-5-08-5500 A 

$25.00 n/15/07 32224 0 BROADVIEW PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
25.00 23-5-00-5245 A 

$288.80 11/1.5/07 00996 0 CASE LOTS INC 
288.80 23-5-00-5335 A 

$584.70 1.1/19/07 00996 0 CASE LOTS INC 
584.70 11.-5-08-5330 A 

$2341..15 1.1./15/07 01800 0 CDW GOVERNMENT. INC. 
180.1.2 11-5-16-5215 A 

2090.77 11.-5-16-521.5 A 
70.26 1.1-5-16-5215 A 

$10.00 11/19/07 01800 0 CDW GOVERNMENT,INC. 
10.00 32-5-00-5251. A 

$497.28 11/15/07 00010 0 CHECKPOINT 
497.28 23-5-00-5335 A 

$222.92 n/15/07 00976 0 CINTAS U 769 
146.79 23-5-00-5500 A 

76.13 23-5-00-5500 A 

$365.85 1.1/19/07 00976 0 CINTAS # 769 
260.00 11-5-07-5500 A 
105.85 11-5-1.1.-5500 A 

$149697.75 1.1/15/07 00005 0 CITY OF CHICAGO 
149697.75 80-5-00-5200 A 

$44.54 11/19/07 00762 0 COLUI1N OFFICE EQUIPMENT 
44.54 11-5-08-5505 A 

$2840.00 11/15/07 01418 0 COMCAST SPOTLIGHT 
710.00 56-5-56-8100 CT 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTAND ING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

4 



REPORT; CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK # 

01 334879 

01 334859 

01 334884 

01 334891 

01 334792 

01 334867 

01 334840 

01 334835 

01 334888 

01 334776 

01 334869 

01 334829 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: TUESDAY NOV202007 14,-22 

CHECK AMT 

AMOUNT 

710.00 
710.00 
710.00 

$439.15 
439.15 

$1950.43 
1950.43 

$152446.11 
152446.11 

$7617.79 
791.37 
626.27 
732.75 
626.27 

2083.02 
626.27 
821..67 
683.90 
626.27 

$6956.98 
4259.12 
2697.86 

$263.00 
263.00 

$55.00 
55.00 

$22.00 
22.00 

$787.50 
787.50 

$92.00 
92.00 

$817.18 
817.18 

$600.00 
600.00 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 11/15/07 - 11/19/07 

CHECK DATE VENDOR # 

G/L ACCT # 

57-5-57-8130 
55-5-55-8120 
58-5-58-8110 

11/19/07 01080 
11-5-08-5310 

11/19/07 00223 
51-5-00-5665 

11/19/07 01172 
32-5-00-5245 

11/19/07 01344 
11-5-01-5505 
11-5-02-5505 
11-5-06-5505 
11-5-07-5505 
11-5-08-5505 
11-5-11-5505 
11-5-23-5505 
32-5-00-5505 
80-5-00-5505 

11/15/07 00438 
11-5-16-5215 
11-5-16-5215 

11/19/07 00465 
11-5-06-5305 

11/15/07 33373 
23-5-00-5245 

11/15/07 32264 
23-5-00-5245 

11/19/07 01288 
32-5-00-5300 

11/15/07 00075 
23-5-00-5300 

11/19/07 00685 
11-5-07-5500 

11/15/07 20080 
23-5-00-5335 

ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 

DESCRIPTION 

RR 
SO BER 
OTIF 

o COMMUNICATIONS REVOLVING FUND 
A 

INVOICE "' 

o CURRENT TECNOLOGIES CORPORATION 
A 

o D'LAND CONSTRUCTION,LLC 
A 

o DELAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SERVICES 
MO 
CC 
FINANCE 
FD 
PD 
BD 
REC 
COMM DEVELOP 
WD 

o DELL MARKETING L.P, 
A 
A 

o DIAMOND GRAPHICS, INC. 
A 

o DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY 
A 

o EISENHOWER PUBLIC LIBRARY 
A 

o EL DIA NEWSPAPER 
a 

o EMPIRE COOLER SERVICE,INC. 
A 

o EMSAR CHICAGO/MILWAUKEE 
A 

o F.J. KERR, INC. 
A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

5 



REPORT; CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK U 

01 334812 

01 334818 

01 334890 

01 334781 

01 334856 

01 334868 

01 334886 

01 334905 

01 334837 

01 334845 

01 334804 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: TUESDAY NOV202007 14:22 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 11/15/07 - 11/19/07 

CHECK ANT CHECK DATE VENDOR U AnDRS tt VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT ~ DESCRIPTION INVOICE U 

$290.00 11/15/07 01549 0 FEDERAL RENT-A-FENCE,INC. 
290.00 56-5-56-8100 A 

$540.00 11/15/07 01760 0 FLASH ELECTRIC CO. 
540.00 11-5-11-5210 A 

$149.89 11/19/07 01303 0 PMP 
39.62 11-5-11-5500 A 
29.79 11-5-11-5500 A 
80.48 11-5-08-5500 A 

$4427.94 11/15/07 00167 0 FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSC. 
350.00 58-5-58-8110 A 
781.99 56-5-56-8100 CT 
781.99 57-5-57-8130 RR 
781.99 55-5-55-8120 SBER 
781.97 58-5-58-8110 OT 
150.00 56-5-56-8100 CT 
150.00 57-5-57-8130 RR 
150.00 55-5-55-8120 SOUTH BER 
150.00 58-5-58-8110 OT 
350.00 58-5-58-8110 A 

$100000.00 11/19/07 00167 0 FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSC. 
100000.00 79-5-00-5400 A 

$57.50 11/19/07 00492 0 FULLMER LOCKSMITH SERVICE INC 
57.50 11-5-08-5335 A 

$199.55 11/19/07 01246 0 GABRIEL SALES 
140.99 11-5-20-5500 A 

51.12 11-5-20-5500 A 
7.44 11-5-20-5200 A 

$57.3. 11/19/07 31117 0 GRAINGER 
57.34 11-5-20-5300 A 

$20.00 11/15/07 33141 0 GRANDE PRAIRIE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
20.00 23-5-00-5245 A 

$12364.92 11/19/07 00012 0 HD SUPPLY vlATERWORKS~LTD 
3088.82 80-5-00-5505 A 
4806.20 80-5-00-5505 A 
4469.90 80-5-00-5505 A 

$2494.00 11/15/07 01013 0 HORIZON SCREENING 
2494.00 11-5-23-5335 A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

6 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK it 

01 334844 

01 334796 

01 334787 

01 334.902 

01 334791 

01 334906 

01 334900 

01 334857 

01 334780 

01 334854 

01 334.911 

01 334773 

01 334849 

01 334828 

01 334903 

01 334.901 

GENERATED: 20 MAR OS 16:33 RUN: TUESDAY NOV202007 14;22 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 11/15/07 - 11/19/07 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR" ADDRS it VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT it DESCRIPTION INVOICE " 

$219.50 11/15/07 35881 0 ID LABEL INCORPORATED 
219.50 23-5-00-5335 A 

$50.00 1l/lS/07 00553 0 ILLINOIS HUMANITIES COUNCIL 
50.00 23-5-00-5240 A 

$2475.00 1l/lS/07 00344 0 ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 
2475.00 11-5-02-5300 A 

$370.00 ll/19/07 20084 0 INGENIX SUBROGATION SERVICES 
370.00 11-1-00-1315 A 

$446.83 11/15/07 00398 0 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES 
446.83 23-5-00-5210 A 

$505.20 ll/19/07 31638 0 INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM OF CENTRAL CHGO. 
505.20 11-5-20-5200 A 

$3024.00 11/19/07 01841 0 J&M FENCE 
3024.00 11-5-20-5500 A 

$175 • .91 ll/19/07 00188 0 JACK PHELAN CHEVROLET 
175.91 11-5-08-5500 A 

$883.48 ll/lS/07 00162 0 JACK'S RENTAL INC 
883.48 23-5-00-5335 A 

$19.49 1l/19/07 00162 0 JACK'S RENTAL INC 
1.9.49 11-5-08-5500 A 

$35.00 11/19/07 35968 0 JERRY ENRIGHT 
35.00 11-5-07-5330 A 

$32.99 ll/lS/07 00067 0 JIM FRANK 
32.99 11-5-16-5300 A 

$115.77 11/19/07 00067 0 JIM PRANK 
115.77 11-5-16-5300 A 

$1475.00 ll/lS/07 20079 0 JOSEjLUZ PENA 
1475.00 11-2-00-2400 A 

$225.00 ll/19/07 20085 0 JOSEPH SCHINTZER 
225.00 11-2-00-2400 A 

$122.10 11/19/07 20083 0 JUAN M. REYES 
122.10 11-2-00-2425 A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

7 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK tt 

01 334908 

01 334824 

01 334809 

01 334851 

01 334843 

01 334797 

01 334893 

01 334811 

01 334865 

01 334833 

01 334817 

01 334778 

01 334850 

01 334909 

01 334880 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: TUESDAY NOV202007 14:22 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE, 11/1s/0? - 111l9/0? 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR ff ADDRS ff VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT tt DESCRIPTION INVOICE !t 

$355.25 11/19/0? 32052 0 JUST TIRES 
15.00 80-5-00-5500 >lD 

340.25 11-5-08-5500 PD 

$54.00 11/15/07 01933 0 KDD OF ILLINOIS,LTD. 
45.00 11-5-11-5500 A 

9.00 23-5-00-5500 A 

$763.02 11/15/07 01460 0 KEY EQUIPTMBNT FINANCE 
763.02 23-5-00-5500 A 

$73.00 11/19/0? 00098 0 L-K FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICE 
73.00 11-5-07-5500 A 

$35.00 11/1s/0? 35777 0 LAGRANGE PARK PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT 
35.00 23-5-00-5245 A 

$145.85 11/1s/0? 00815 0 LAW BULLETIN PUBLISHING CO. 
145.85 23-5-00-5210 A 

$110.00 11/19/07 01382 0 LAW ENFORCEMENT TRAINING,INC. 
110.00 11-5-08-5330 A 

$69.54 11/1S/0? 01515 0 LEt<1BKE & SONS TRUE VALUE HARDWARE. INC. 
69.54 23-5-00-5500 A 

$687.85 11/19/0? 00407 0 LITTLE VILLAGE PRINTING 
500.05 11-5-08-5305 A 
187.80 11-5-11-5300 A 

$5.00 11/1S/0? 31429 0 LYONS PUBLIC LIBRARY 
5.00 23-5-00-5245 A 

$2340.00 11/15/07 01692 0 M.K. SPORTS 
2340.00 11-5-23-5210 A 

$492.00 11/15/07 00085 0 MACNEAL OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH SERVICES 
492.00 11-5-20-5300 A 

$849.00 11/19/0? 00085 0 MACNEAL OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH SERVICES 
849.00 11-5-08-5300 A 

$35.00 11/19/07 35677 0 MARIO MANFRED IN I 
35.00 11-5-07-5330 A 

$833.33 11/19/0? 01093 0 MARK WEINER 
833.33 11-5-04-5203 A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

8 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK n 

01 334786 

01 334841 

01 334772 

01 334794 

01 334862 

01 334779 

01 334866 

01 334873 

01 334822 

01 334815 

01 334860 

01 334846 

01 334839 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: TUESDAY NOV202007 14:22 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 11/15/07 - 11/19/07 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR # ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT # DESCRIPTION UrvOICE # 

$32.63 11/15/07 00343 0 MC MASTER-CARR SUPPLY INC 
32.63 23-5-00-5335 A 

$908.35 11/15/07 33555 0 MENARDS-CICERO 
40.90 11-5-23-5210 HALLOWEEN 
16.68 11-5-23-5210 pp 
20.04 11-5-23-5500 MISC 

159.40 11-5-23-5210 A 
218.75 11-5-23-5210 A 

90.57 11-5-23-5500 A 
362.01 11-5-23-5210 A 

$10069.29 11/15/07 00040 0 METROPOLITAN LIBRARY SYSTEM 
521.16 23-5-00-5305 L 

9548.13 23-5-00-5225 pp 

$56.08 11/15/07 00520 0 METROPOLITAN LIBRARY SYSTEM 
28.04 23-5-00-5245 A 
28.04 23-5-00-5245 A 

$1077.42 11/19/07 00295 0 MIDCO INC. 
1077.42 11-5-08-5500 A 

$191.00 11/15/07 00105 0 MILTON F PERSIN 
191. 00 11-5-13-5300 A 

$6320.00 11/19/07 00434 0 MOORE CONSTRUCTION 
6320.00 32-5-00-5251 A 

$1327.00 11/19/07 00929 0 McDONOUGH MECHANICAL SERVICES. INC. 
1327.00 11-5-08-5500 A 

$103.99 11/15/07 01928 0 NABIR 
103.99 23-5-00-5250 A 

$2865.31 11/15/07 01632 0 NICOR GAS 
2865.31 23-5-00-5325 A 

$300.00 11/19/07 00265 0 NORTHEAST MULTI REGIONAL TRAINING 
300.00 11-5-08-5330 A 

$175.00 11/19/07 00020 0 NORTHWESTERN UNIVERSITY CENTER 
175.00 11-5-08-5330 A 

$44.88 11/15/07 33183 0 OFFICE DEPOT 
44.88 23-5-00-5335 A 

PAGE 

.cHECK 
STATUs 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

9 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK H 

01 334897 

01 334836 

01 334799 

01 334771 

01 334863 

01 334907 

01 334831 

01 334816 

01 334904 

01 334793 

01 334910 

01 334877 

01 334827 

01 334853 

01 334783 

01 334861 

GENERATED: 20 MAR OS 16:33 RUN: TUESDAY NOV202007 14;22 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 11/15/07 - 11/19/07 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR H ADDRS U VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT U DESCRIPTION INVOICE # 

$588.00 11/19/07 01524 0 ON TIME,INC. 
588.00 51-5-00-5651 A 

$1918.00 11/15/07 32703 0 PERSONALIZED AWARDS LLC 
1918.00 23-5-00-5300 A 

$3068.59 11/15/07 00913 0 PETAR DUMANOVIC.LLC 
3068.59 23-5-00-5500 A 

$4119.00 11/15/07 00029 0 PITNEY BOWES 
4119.00 80-5-00-5650 A 

$50.00 11/19/07 00345 0 PROFESSIONAL PEST CONTROL~INC. 
50.00 11-5-08-5500 A 

$1783.42 11/19/07 31672 0 RAnCO COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 
1783.42 11-5-07-5300 A 

$21620.00 11/15/07 20082 0 RAMON ALEX PRIETO 
21620.00 57-5-57-8130 A 

$415.20 11/15/07 01647 0 RANDOM HOUSE,INC. 
415.20 23-5-00-5220 A 

$1264.00 11/19/07 30099 0 RAY O'HERRON CO. INC. 
1264.00 11-5-08-5335 A 

$13864.03 11/15/07 00468 0 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
13864.03 51-5-00-5680 A 

$65.00 11/19/07 35953 0 RICHARD SWADE 
65.00 11-5-07-5330 A 

$334.48 11/19/07 01055 0 RIZZA FORD 
19.76 11-5-07-5500 FD 
58.96 11-5-08-5500 PD 

255.76 11-5-20-5500 PW 

$1475.00 11/15/07 20078 0 ROBERT SALINA,JR. 
1475.00 11-2-00-2400 A 

$800.00 11/19/07 00117 0 ROMEOVILLE FIRE ACADEMY 
800.00 11-5-07-5330 A 

$167.41 11/15/07 00280 0 ROSCOE COMPANY 
167.41 23-5-00-5500 A 

$211. 37 11/19/07 00280 0 ROSCOE COMPANY 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

10 



REPORT; CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK tt 

01 334784 

01 334832 

01 334878 

01 334852 

01 334814 

01 334896 

01 334810 

01 334882 

01 334887 

01 334802 

01 334842 

01 334881 

01 334895 

01 334790 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: TUESDAY NOV202007 14;22 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 11/15/07 - 11/19/07 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR H ADDRS tt VENDOR NAME 

AMOUNT G/L ACCT fl DESCRIPTION INVOICE tt 

211.37 11-5-08-5500 A 

$2250.00 11/15/07 00308 0 RUNNION EQUIPI1ENT COMPANY 
2250.00 11-5-21-5500 A 

$946.99 11/15/07 30617 0 SAM'S CLUB 
316.78 23-5-00-5215 A 
266.6B 23-5-00-5215 A 
363.53 23-5-00-5215 A 

$594.37 11/19/07 01064 0 SAM'S CLUB 
594.37 11-5-08-5300 A 

$38.20 11/19/07 00101 0 SCHULTZ SUPPLY CO.INC. 
38.20 11-5-07-5300 A 

$164.56 11/15/07 01629 0 SHANE'S OFFICE SUPPLY CO. 
164.56 23-5-00-5335 A 

$668.22 11/19/07 01479 0 SPRINT 
668.22 11-5-08-5310 A 

$250000.00 11/15/07 01503 0 STEWART TITLE COMPANY 
250000.00 55-5-55-8300 A 

$343.00 11/19/07 01121 0 STREICHER'S 
343.00 51-5-00-5651 A 

$303.58 11/19/07 01254 0 SUBURBAN TIRE COMPANY 
100.00 11-5-08-5500 A 
203.58 11-5-11-5500 A 

$696.63 11/15/07 00989 0 T-MOBILE 
522.48 11-5-11-5300 BD 
174.15 15-5-00-5300 CO 

$23.98 11/15/07 34762 0 TAMMY CLAUSEN 
23.98 23-5-00-5250 A 

$123.11 11/19/07 01106 0 TARGET AUTO PARTS 
123.11 11-5-07-5300 A 

$285.00 11/19/07 01429 0 TASER INTERNATIONAL 
285.00 11-5-08-5330 A 

$391. 67 11/15/07 00391 0 TELE-TRON ACE HARDWARE 
50.94 23-5-00-5335 A 

300.00 11-5-23-5210 REC 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

11 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

BANK CHECK # 

01 334823 

01 334819 

01 334785 

01 334806 

01 334892 

01 334805 

01 334830 

01 334883 

01 334825 

01 334870 

01 334774 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: TUESDAY NOV202007 14:22 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 11/15/07 - 11/19/07 

CHECK AMT CHECK DATE VENDOR H ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 

AHOUNT GIL ACCT H DESCRIPTION INVOICE it 

40.73 11-5-23-5500 MISC 

$62.33 11/15/07 01929 0 THE AV CAFE 
62.33 23-5-00-5220 A 

$2463.75 11/15/07 01786 0 THOMSON GALE 
2463.75 23-5-00-5210 A 

$226.50 11/15/07 00315 0 TIN STAR ELECTRONIC SERVICE,INC. 
226.50 11-5-08-5500 A 

$627.69 11/15/07 01364 0 TRYAD AUTOMOTIVE 
397.99 11-5-08-5500 PD 
18.89 11-5-07-5500 PD 

210.81 11-5-20-5200 PW 

$706.11 11/19/07 01364 0 TRYAD AUTOMOTIVE 
57.90 11-5-08-5500 A 

136.60 11-5-20-5500 A 
293.93 11-5-08-5500 A 

80.58 11-5-20-5500 A 
137.10 11-5-23-5500 A 

$966.60 11/15/07 01163 0 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC. 
966.60 23-5-00-5245 A 

$1475.00 11/15/07 20081 0 URIEL GARCIA 
1475.00 11-2-00-2400 A 

$206.80 11/19/07 01171 0 US GAS 
206.80 11-5-07-5300 A 

$1475.00 11/15/07 20076 0 VINCENTE HERNANDEZ JR. 
1475.00 11-2-00-2400 A 

$64.77 11/19/07 00698 0 WALGREENS CO. 
64.77 11-5-08-5300 A 

$4852.39 11/15/07 00069 0 WAREHOUSE DIRECT 
67.97 11-5-11-5300 A 
4.16 11-5-20-5300 A 

204.80 11-5-02-5300 A 
491. 70 11-5-06-5300 A 
459.96 11-5-23-5300 A 
302.92 11-5-23-5300 A 
467.74 11-5-20-5300 A 

4.24 11-5-20-5300 A 
278.64 11-5-23-5300 A 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

12 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 RUN: TUESDAY NOV202007 14:22 

BlINK 

01 

01 

01 

01 

01 

01 

01 

CHECK it 

334775 

334789 

334864 

334855 

334874 

334885 

334899 

CHECK AMT 

AMOUNT 

417.96 
108.36 

37.51 
131.01 

15.95 
284.99 
45.97 
35.74 

259.90 
295.45 
228.56 
263.12 

97.22 
120.70 
202.60 

7.62 
17.60 

$38.50 
38.50 

$27.50 
27.50 

$4364.34 
806.74 

30.00 
387.60 
864.00 

2276.00 

$769.85 
769.85 

$3073.29 
3073.29 

$111. 40 
111.40 

TOTAL it OF ISSUED CHECKS; 

TOTAL» OF VOIDED/REISSUED CHECKS; 

TOTAL it OF ACH CHECKS: 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 11/15/07 - 11/19/07 

CHECK DATE VENDOR it ADDRS It VENDOR NAME 

G/L ACCT it 

11-5-23-5300 
23-5-00-5300 
11-5-14-5245 
11-5-20-5300 
11-5-06-5300 
11-5-20-5300 
11-5-02-5300 
15-5-00-5300 
11-5-20-5300 
11-5-23-5300 
11-5-20-5300 
11-5-20-5300 
11-5-06-5300 
11-5-07-5300 
11-5-07-5300 
11-5-07-5300 
80-5-00-5335 

11/15/07 00069 

11/15/07 00377 
11-5-11-5300 

11/19/07 00377 
11-5-08-5335 

11/19/07 00163 
11-5-20-5300 
11-5-20-5300 
11-5-20-5300 
11-5-20-5300 
11-5-20-5300 

11/19/07 00963 
11-5-07-5500 

11/19/07 01195 
11-5-20-5500 

11/19/07 01803 
11-5-11-5500 

142 TOTAL AHOUNT: 

o TOTAL AMOUNT: 

o TOTAL AMOUNT: 

DESCRIPTION 

A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 

0 UNISSUED 

0 WATER ONE 
QA 

0 WATER ONE 
A 

0 WESTERN REMAC INC. 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 

0 WHEELED COACH INDUSTRIES 
A 

0 WINTER EQUIPTMENT CO.,INC. 
A 

0 ZEE MEDICAL,INC. 
A 

890205.64 

0.00 

0.00 

INVOICE ti 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

UNISSUED 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

OUTSTANDING 

13 



REPORT: CHECKREG GENERATED: 20 MAR OS 16;33 RUN: TUESDAY NOV202007 14:22 

CITY OF BERWYN 
CHECK REGISTER 

DATE RANGE: 11/15/07 - 11/19/07 

BANK CHECK if CHECKAMT CHECK DATE VENDOR fl ADDRS # VENDOR NAME 

AMOtrnT GIL ACCT if DESCRIPTION UNOICE ff 

TOTAL if OF UNISSUED CHECKS: 1 

PAGE 

CHECK 
STATUS 

14 



REPORT: CHECKREG 

FUND TOTALS 

FUND 

011 
015 
023 
032 
051 
055 
056 
057 
058 
079 
080 

GENERATED: 20 MAR 05 16:33 

FUND NAME 

GENERAL FUND 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH FUND 
LIBRARY FUND 
CDBG PROJECT FUND 
MISC GRANT FUND 
SOUTH BERNYN CORRIDOR TIP FUND 
CERMAK TIP DISTRICT 
ROOSEVELT TIP FUND 
OGDEN AVE. TIF DISTRICT 
MOTOR FUEL TAX 
WATER AND SEWER 

TOTAL -

ISSUED TOTAL 

131.,947.13 
295.20 

34,895.86 
160,303.51 
16,745.46 

251,641.99 
1,931..99 

23,261..99 
2,341.97 

100.000.00 
1.66,840.54 

890,205.64 

RUN: TUESDAY NOV202007 14:22 

VOIDED/REISSUED TOTAL 

0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 
0.00 

0.00 

PAGE 15 



Date: Wednesday, November 7, 2007 
To: Mayor Michael O'Connor, Berwyn City Council Members 
From: William FitzGerald, FitzGerald's Deer Lodge, Inc. 

6615 W. Roosevelt Rd. 
(708) 788-2118 

Re: Upcoming events 

Dear Mayor/Council Members, 

FitzGerald's requests permission to hold the following events, which will involve 
erecting tents on FitzGerald's property and hosting live entertainment in those tents as 
well as in the nightclub. 

2007 - FALL MUSIC FESTIVAL - Friday, November 16 

2008 - ST PATRICK'S DAY - We are still trying to decide whether to celebrate "on the 
day," Monday, March 17 or on Sunday, March 16. 

2008 - AMERICAN MUSIC FESTIVAL - 4 dates ranging from July 2 through July 6. 

Thank your for your consideration. 

Sincerely, . . /1 14 tJ JfL~ A-J..Gy ~ j-.- .. 

William D. F~~eJ;Ud 
FitzGerald's 



November 8, 2007 

City of Berwyn 

YOU CAN MAKE IT-INC. 
6012 South Honore 
Chicago, IL 60636 

Mayor Michael O'Connor and 
Members of the Berwyn City Counsel 
6700 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402-0701 

Dear Mayor and Members of the Berwyn City Counsel, 

I am writing this letter to ask for permit to solicit in Berwyn. YOU CAN MAKE IT-Outreach is a 

non-profit organization. It is a 9-month residential program for men and women with drug 

addiction and other dependency issues. This program provides spiritual education, and links 

residents to life skills agencies, job training and employment. Our goal is to develop tangible 

marketable skills and equip men and women with practical tools that will enable them to become 

contributing members of soeiety. 

Personal objectives for each resident are to provide every resident salvation through the power 

and work of Jesus Christ, and to develop in each person a greater relationship with God through the 

word of God and prayer.. Enclosed is a copy of a brochure for our organization, and a letter from 

the Attorney General's office confirming our status as a charitable organization, a Certificate of 

Insurance, and a copy of our brochure .. 

We are asking torolieit for funding on Thursday January 24, Friday January 25, and Saturday 

January 26, 200fat the intersections of 22nd and Harlem and 22ND and Oak Park from 8:30 a.m .. 

until 5:30 p.m. If you have any questions, please call me at (773) 424-3492. 

Sincerely, 

J::t:4" ......... ~-a eline Kennedy 0-
Executive Director 



C') 
.z 

~ 
CD 

tl 
-a 

-u ::r 
g 
'" 

Z 
III 

3 
'" 

6: 
a. 
ro 
'" '" 

-0 
ro 
'" '" " s: 
~ 

'" 3 
3 
'" 3-

G) co 
;i Q) 

'" " ~ 0 
R ~ 
-< o c: 
~ 
z 
:;:: 
:I-

" m 

~ 

'" ~ 
'" rn 
o 

~ 
s: 
.a 
'" " (") 
::r 
£" 
co 
.0 

F 
en 
'" en 
o 

'" 

~ a: 
2: 
o 

" ~ 

::: 
o 
c 
0: 

'"' " o 
3 
'" ,.,. 
" '" 3 

I ! 
III [ 
~ co 

~ ~ 

I III 
013 
a " a a 
0.::::1 
(fJc; 

.gCT 
-as. 
-5' 
'<<0 

a 
~ 

< 
-u2. 
'" c ~ ::::I 

'" -0'" 
::::I '" 
~5' 
:c<O 
;;33 
(fi''< 

::::I '" 
'" x -a 

I a. 
C')g: 
0--
-::::I 
:t.g 
~'" 0' 
I 5' 
o !i. 
-a" ",<0 
~ III 
III ~ 
=:<0 
" III <0'" 
(fJ .-

c 
-a -a 
a 
::l-

-l 
til 
::::I 

'" -a 
a 
::l
III 

5-
::::I 

~ 
c 
" III g-
::::I 

m;~~3-< 
33- c Q!.O _. gro::Jc 
~a:3re..zO 
(iJroro~C'» 
IJJ@'< :::JZ 
[~go~s: 
_.ro """"'3 a.> 
::J 0.""0 A 
2' :i" 3. ~~ m 
::J :::J CD -
9:c~;::;;cg;-l 
:J::J<n ;:J

(C o.::rO-(I) Z m _._.0.., C') 
::I ::J "C 0 E!:tO _.:It:' 
ow:::Jro(J){jr 
.., ::J g :f < OJ 

OJ E::.'" 0 Q. < m 0 CD ..., C a 
iii'''' ~~ac 
d;.wQom:::l 
:J(I) .......... CO-
"'(Jl"'~~'" _. . CD 
-<~»o<g·"'" 0--=- ",,0-
c:lo. enOl 
nccoQo{/} 
»-<:::JC:-~ 
ZO~.., ~'::J 
S;co'030 
»(")~s.m:r 

fri~~ffi~a 
=1"""'''0.",, • ::::am::r3-
m:t>x-ooQ 
ffi@o.a:J~ 
iif_~~~2. 
-,-{cOJ-. N 

0" °3 .... w 
..,Or:::t. O!::t. 
:;!s.S!:1jj-3 g 
oalfVo. o -3 m roo;:; 
ro" u3::r 
:3::t' (D'"ClOJ 
tus: 5.~UJ 
::::I __ '" _.Ill 
Q.:J ro-
C') 

_. ;:t en :E 
::r'" III 
=~ g~'Ui 
0. 0.0-
~ "Q_.ro 
-' _. ::J CD 

OJ e:::J ro :s.w o 0 a. §-'Q a OJ OJ 
::J (j) (I) 

OJ' '" !::'. ..., 
a m a 
::1 < 0 
CIlroUi 
0'-< co 
""0.2. 
'" 0'" c -~ 

"'0 w"O 
""0 .., :J. 
o Ul ~ 
::l-u 
• (1) OJ 

:;!;:!.5. 
CD (ii' (if 

HISTORY 
Through the efforts of a small group 

of individuals headed by Jacqueline 
Kennedy, a grassroots organization was 
formed to extend a helping hand to 
some of society's most forgotten, the 
Homeless in the Englewood neighbor
hood, one of Chicago's poorest com
munities. Chronic unemployment, drug 
addiction, gangs, violence and crime 
plague this community. 

An overnight shelter for homeless 
men was opened in March 2001 
providing food, showers, phone and 
emergency housing. (6012 South 
Honore) It was furnished and funded 
through community support and candy 
sales . 

Through ongoing efforts and much 
volunteer support. a second emergency 
shelter was opened in April 2002 at 
1500 West 51't Street to serve home
less women. 

Recognizing the dire need for 
services for homeless women with 
children You Can Make It - Shelter for 
Women and Children was started. Its 
purpose is to offer homeless women 
and children a hand up, not just a hand 
out, providing housing and support 
services for a period ranging up to 120 
days. It is an emergency response 
shelter functioning at the level of most 
interim housing programs. 

YOU CAN MAKE IT, INC. shelters are 
making a great difference in the 
community and the many lives in which 
it serves. 

YOU CAN MAKE IT, INC. 

YOU CAN MAKE IT-
Shelter for Women and Children 
is an agency dedicated to helping .. 

• the homeless 

• economically distressed 

• the most forgotten 

to provide shelter and support 
services to women and children 
in need . 

YOU CAN MAKE IT
Outreach Ministry 

is a ministry dedicated to helping .. 

• the addict 

• the alcoholic 

• the downtrodden 

rekindling faith toward God, ... 
teaching them new skills, ... and 
return them to society . 



YOU CAN MAKE IT, INC. 
MISSION 

YOU CAN MAKE IT, INC. provides various 
support services and! or shelter for people 
with economic and! or dependency issues. 

YOU CAN MAKE IT, INC. 
can be divided into two major areas the Shelter for 
Women and Children and the Outreach Ministry: 

YOU CAN MAKE IT-
Shelter for Women and Children 

is a 50-bed four month emergency response shelt
er operating on the level of most interim housing 
programs. This agency is designed to address the 
needs of some of society's most forgotten. home
less women with children. The shelter is located 
Englewood {New City area of Chicago, two of Chic 
ago's poorest neighborhoods. 
This shelter IS an agency that works in conjunct
ion with the Chicago Department of Human Serv
ices and complies with all its rules and regulations. 
By working in collaboration with over 90 agencies 
opportunities for housing and employment for the 
women that we serve are greatly increased. 
Clients are helped by referral to agencies that 
provide counseling (for those In need), job train
ing, housing and employment. 

YOU CAN MAKE IT- Outreach Minisby 
is a 9-month residential program for men and 
women with drug addiction and other dependency 
issues. This program provides spiritual education, 
and links residents to life skills agencies, job train
ing and employment. Our goal is to develop tang
ible marketable skills and equip men and women 
with practical tools that enable them to becqme 
contributing members of society. . 

Personal objectives for each resident are: 

to provide every resident salvation through 
the power and work of Jesus Christ 

to develop in each person a greater relation
ship with God through the Word of God and 
prayer. 

YOU CAN MAKE IT-INC. 

YOU CAN MAKE IT - Shelter for Women and Children 

Shelter for Women and Children 
5200 South Morgan in Chicago 

yOU CAN MAKE IT - Shelter for Women and Children is 50-bed emer
gency shelter that provide temporary housing (up to 4 months) while 
providing a broad range of services that will give homeless women and 
children the support that they need to overcome the many problems 
they face. This shelter provides a safe non-judgmental environment for 
each person served. 

YOU CAN MAKE IT-Outreach Ministry 

Women in residential program at 
1500 West 51st Street in Chicago 

Men's Program 

YOU CAN MAKE IT-Outreach Ministry is a 9 month residential 
program that provides a positive Christian environment for 
men struggling with drug addiction and other issues. 

Women's Program 

YOU CAN MAKE IT-Outreach Ministry is a 9 month residential 
program that provides a positive Christian environment for 
women struggling with addiction and other issues. 


	1-a
	1-b
	1-c
	1-d

